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1. puBlIC entItY’s General InForMatIon 

REGISTERED NAME: Castle Control Board

PHYSICAL ADDRESS: C/O Castle and Darling Streets

 Cape Town

 8001

POSTAL ADDRESS: P.O. Box 1

 Cape Town

 8001

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S: 027 21 787 1339

FAX NUMBER: 027 21 787 1089

EMAIL ADDRESS: ceo@castleofgoodhope.co.za

WEBSITE ADDRESS: www.castleofgoodhope.co.za

EXTERNAL AUDITORS: AGSA

BANKERS: ABSA

BOARD SECRETARY: Mr Derek Williams

PARt A: 

GeneRAL  
InFoRMAtIon
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2. lIst oF aBBreVIatIons/aCronYMs

AGSA Auditor General of South Africa

APP Annual Performance Plan

BBBEE Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment

ED/CEO Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

TR Treasury Regulations

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework

SMME Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises

SCM Supply Chain Management

CCB Castle Control Board

DOD&MV Department of Defence and Military Veterans

CGH Castle of Good Hope

ICMP Integrated Conservation Management Plan

KPI Key Performance Indicator

NDPW                            National Department of Public Works
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3. ForeWord BY tHe CHaIrperson

The year under review was arguably one of my most 

exciting and productive ones. In this, the last time in 

my capacity as Chief of Logistics, my Board and I have 

managed to establish the top management structure 

of the organization and set a new, exciting strategic 

direction which, in a limited space of time, has already 

yielded significant results. We have also taken major 

steps towards strengthening our policy and control 

environment.

Although there is always room for improvement, I am 

fully satisfied that we have achieved our goals as set 

out at the beginning of the financial year.

After reviewing our strategic mandate in August 

2013, the Board agreed to focus on seven strategic 

imperatives which will underpin its programmatic 

interventions over the next three years: 

•	 Asserting the CCB’s leadership role in all 

matters affecting conservation, tourism and 

education at the Castle of Good Hope; 

•	 Re-organization and strengthening of the 

human resources component to efficiently and 

effectively implement the Board’s new vision; 

•	 Protecting and aggressively promoting the 

CGH’s cultural-historic significance and 

authenticity;

•	 Pursuing profitable private and public sector 

partnerships;

•	 Fast-tracking the responsible development of the 

CGH’s tourism potential; 

•	 Enhancing the Castle’s relatively weak public 

image and brand; and finally, 

•	 Moving towards a more interactive, customer-

driven approach in heritage tourism 

management.

Armed with these strategic imperatives, the Board and 

its management team are determined to reposition this 

national cultural-historic asset in order deal with the 

challenges and opportunities of the 21st century. We 

are for example determined to present the Castle as 

South Africa’s next UNESCO World Heritage site and 

will do everything in our power to make sure it is listed. 

With the Executive Director/CEO and key management 

personnel in place, plans in relation to the responsible 

commercialization of hitherto underdeveloped heritage 

tourism assets, development and roll-out of the 

 Lt Gen (Ret) J T Nkonyane
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heritage enterprise development and other delayed 

initiatives, gained momentum.

The healthy interest shown by the Departments of 

Cooperative Governance & Traditional Affairs, Rural 

Development and Land Reform, International Relations 

& Cooperation, Arts and Culture and traditional 

authorities to position and use the Castle as a place 

of healing and reflection for the Khoi-San and other 

representative traditional authorities is encouraging 

and is beginning to bear fruit. 

Tangible demonstration of these working partnerships 

is to be found in the hosting of a series of high profile 

cultural events that saw the public image of the Castle 

soaring. Some of these memorable occasions included 

the hosting of a group of learners from Inanda in Kwa-

Zulu Natal during December, a vibrant Heritage Day 

event that attracted 4 500 people, the opening of our 

Anglo-Zulu museum display with no less than five Zulu 

princes in attendance as well as our highly successful 

Freedom Day festival. All these events were covered by 

national media and it was broadcasted to a collective 

audience of no less than 10 million people!

During the financial year, the Board remained 

steadfast in its commitment to transform its corporate 

governance standing in terms of complying with all 

National Treasury policies and regulations and the 

Auditor General’s (hereafter AG) key recommendations.

The Board has significantly tightened up its policy and 

control environment by reviewing and adopting the 

following policies and procedures: the SCM Policy, 

Risk Procedure, Board Charter, Audit Committee 

Charter, Delegations of Authority, Fraud Prevention 

Policy, and Performance Management System. With 

the appointment of the Internal Auditors and Chief 

Financial Officer towards the end of the financial year, 

one of the last corporate governance loops in our 

repertoire was closed.

Finally, we are very grateful that Phase I of the 

structural restoration of the CGH, which is being 

funded by the National Department of Public Works, 

has been completed and that a detailed maintenance 

and facilities management plan was compiled 

upon completion of this work. This will feed into our 

overarching Integrated Conservation Management 

Plan. The best news, however, is the multi-million rand 

Phase II that is being funded by the Department of 

Defence, and is to commence in the new financial year. 

This will lead to a major positive transformation of the 

current external image of the Castle.

I was extremely privileged to oversee the 

implementation of this exciting phase in the life in 

one of South Africa’s unique cultural and architectural 

crown jewels.

(LIEUTENANT GENERAL J�T� NKONYANE)

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD: CHAIRPERSON

30 May 2014
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utilities, maintenance, security and major structural 

renovations. Without this, and the invaluable 

contribution by the site maintenance and gardening 

team of the National Department of Public Works, we 

would not be able to achieve a fraction of what we set 

ourselves out to do.

Having said this, the public should note that the 

Board’s entire operation is funded by ticket sales, 

venue rental, filming levies, special events and selling 

of merchandise. In fact, revenue from these activities 

led to an accrued historic surplus of R13.9 million 

over the past decade. After many years, we have 

now managed to get the approval of Treasury and 

Executive Authority to expend this surplus on our core 

mandate – indeed a game-changer for us.

Returning to our 2013/14 financial performance - it 

is heartening to note that revenue from ticket sales 

is up by 5.8% - from R1.8 million to R1.9 million this 

year, exceeding our projection by 2.2%. In similar 

vein, revenue from the renting of venues, film shoots 

and events increased from R670k in 2012/13 to 

R690k in 2013/14, representing a 3% increase. This 

is despite the fact that we only achieved 44% of the 

projected income from planned venue rental. This 

I am honoured to present my first annual report as 

accounting officer of the Castle Control Board, the 

managing authority of the world-renowned heritage 

tourist attraction, the Castle of Good Hope.

Under the exemplary leadership of the Army’s Chief 

of Logistics for Defence, Lieutenant General Justice 

Nkonyane, the organization was capable to punch well 

above its weight.

In October 2013 the Board adopted a resolution 

to “Bring the People to the Castle and take the 

Castle to the People”. This bold statement, read with 

the “responsible commercialization” of this world-

important heritage asset were opportunities which 

were passionately embraced by all members of the 

small CCB team.

FInanCIal reVIeW

It is common knowledge that the Castle Control Board 

does not receive any direct state funding towards its 

R4.2 million annual budget. However, at the outset 

we want to express our sincere gratitude towards the 

Department of Defence for its significant non-financial 

support towards human resources, accommodation, 

4. CHIeF eXeCutIVe oFFICer’s oVerVIeW

Calvyn Gilfellan



CASTLE CONTROL BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2013/20146

drop was primarily the result of the anticipated income 

from De Goewerneur and Het Bakhuys catering and 

entertainment outlets, managed by the Non Public 

Fund institutions of the South African National Defence 

Force which did not materialize.

On the expenditure side, we need to highlight that the 

expansion of the management team has pushed up 

our salaries and wages to 16% above the estimated 

R1.5 million. However, with the Executive Director, CFO 

and Tourism Coordinator in place, we will see more 

savings in areas which were previously outsourced, as 

well as a more cost-effective and economic execution 

of our mandate. In fact, consulting fees were radically 

reduced, i.e. 66% compared to the previous year. As 

we finalize the management team and other critical 

appointments, the reliance on expensive external 

service providers and consultants will be further 

reduced. 

Given the significant maintenance support provided 

by SANDF and NDPW staff on the site, repairs and 

maintenance items are always difficult to manage 

during the year, because one cannot accurately 

foresee expenditures during the year. This is 

exacerbated by the fact that the Castle is to undergo 

a major revamp in the new financial year, hence a 

decision to only spend on emergency day-to-day 

maintenance. 

The result was that the amount spent on maintenance 

of the building was 8% lower than the previous year. 

This represents only 15% of the budgeted amount. 

Since we have not compromised or forsook our 

maintenance and repair duties, this could be regarded 

as a genuine saving to be rolled over to the next 

financial year.

Top picture: The Kyknet team paid a visit to the Castle in  

April 2013; Middle picture: The “Voorlopertjie” of The Young 

Guiding Stars Christmas Band performing for Leliebloem 

Home for Abused and Destitute Children (Bottom picture) from 

Belgravia, Athlone on the 23 December 2013.
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The operating expenditure on the maintenance of 

existing and new museum installations decreased 

by 15% year-on-year, the result of having to stop the 

planned new installations until renovations have been 

completed. A slight overspend of 2.4% against budget 

can be divided among expenditure on historic books, 

other collectables and operating expenditure  

on displays.

The bottom-line is that the CCB has managed its 

finances exceptionally well and only realized an 

underspent of R41k for the past financial year;  

a massive improvement on the R883k of the  

previous year.

CapaCItY ConstraInts and CHallenGes

Given the relative small size of the organization, the 

Board has not yet applied its mind to the necessary 

requirements for the management structure 

to optimally execute their full mandate for the 

organisation. Despite the valiant efforts of the previous 

management team, recurring corporate governance 

concerns in respect of segregation of duties, 

management oversight, internal controls, supply chain 

management and strategic focus have dogged the 

organization for the past three years. 

This has started to change with the appointment of the 

accounting officer and the Board’s bold, new strategic 

direction (see Chairperson’s report) adopted in  

August 2013.

The human resources capacity constraints have 

now all but been addressed with the appointment 

of the CFO, Tourism & Events Coordinator and the 

appointment of a part-time Heritage Officer.

The said members have performance contracts 

with clear KPIs, allocated budgets and delegation of 

authority. The strengthening of the HR capacity has 

been complemented with the appointment of a new 

Internal Audit Team. The results of these and other 

interventions should already be apparent in certain 

parts of this year’s performance report. Under the 

guidance of a very vibrant Audit Committee, regular 

“dashboard” engagements with the AGSA have paved 

the way for a vastly improved corporate governance 

scorecard.

CCB tourist guide Olwethu Luvalo in traditional Zulu attire. Ten year old prodigal drummer boy Daniel Petersen (junior) 

surrounded by his admirers.
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Perhaps more fundamental are challenges related 

to the management of the Castle as a multiple-use, 

multiple-stakeholder and multiple-demand type of 

site in a sensitive, integrated manner. The inhabitants 

of the Castle include various stakeholders such as 

Iziko, SAHRA, SANDF, the Reserve Force Offices, 

private exhibitors, artists and a restaurateur. To 

counter potential conflict and contestation between 

stakeholders, we have reinstituted the regular 

monthly Castle Stakeholder Forum where issues of 

mutual interest and concern are discussed. Similarly, 

the “Concerned Castle Citizens Group” has been 

restored.

The perception of the Castle as a symbol of 

oppression, colonialism and exclusion is a strategic 

and operational challenge that we deal with on a 

daily basis. To quote one such critique: 

“For me, the Castle remains an icon of 

the inhumanity of the capitalist world 

and the market economy. It stands as a 

beacon of ‘White’ supremacy where their 

European descendants come and drool 

over the ‘achievements’ of their forbearers...

and oops...so sorry your ancestors were 

dehumanised and tortured, but that was 

not us, it was in the past”, some say. At the 

moment it is the History of the victors.  Where 

is the story of the Castle’s impact on the 

local peoples’ livelihood, culture and ways 

of knowing? With utterances as I have 

mentioned above, one sees that not much 

has changed in the mentality and discourse 

towards the ‘other’ in this 21st century…

” (E-mail comment, Khoisan Descendent, April 2014).
Images from World Renowned Photographer Per-Anders 

Pettersson Exhibition covering 20 years of democracy in  

South Africa.
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The other side of the spectrum is this quote from our 

Visitors Comment Book at the Military Museum:

“It saddens me to see the absolute deterioration 

of what was once a proud beacon of the 

Afrikaner, now a destroyed museum for holding 

talent competitions!” 

(Nicolas Pool, Castle Visitors Book entry, 26 April 2014.)

Somewhere between these two comments lies the 

solution to this challenge. Are we there yet? Probably 

not, but do watch this space!

perForManCe delIVerY reVIeW and 
HIGHlIGHts

Later in this document, a complete report of the CCB’s 

performance against its predetermined objectives 

is presented. Suffice to say that out of the nine (9) 

key performance indicators spread over the four 

programmes below, only two (2) were not fully met – 

and with good reason. Herewith a summary:

•	 Under the programme Administration and Good 

Corporate Governance, we have achieved or 

over-achieved all the KPIs dealing with the 

operations of the Board, Board sub-committees 

and general administration. If one adds the 

many key policies the Board adopted, as 

well as the rapid improvement of our control 

environment as reported through our quarterly 

dashboard engagements with the AGSA, then 

the CCB is well on its way to good corporate 

citizenship!

•	 As far as the programme dealing with the 

Preservation, Interpretation and Showcasing of 

the History of the Castle is concerned, wherein 

we set ourselves a KPI target to increase the 

number of scholars, it is encouraging to report 

that we exceeded our APP target by 16.6%. 

Year-on-year learner visitor numbers grew from 

29 012 in 2012/13 to 29 391 in 2013/14. The only 

gap in an otherwise well-executed programme, 

is the significant underspent in repairs and 

maintenance referred to earlier.

•	 The programme dealing with Maximising the 

Tourist Potential of the Castle also delivered 

some positive results. Although visitor figures 

to the Castle has increased from 140 888 in 

2012/13 to 141 084 in 2013/14, we missed  

our ambitious APP target by a mere 2.6%.  

Traditional leadership attending the Castle’s 2013 Heritage month celebrations.
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This result was mainly due to the closing of the 

Castle (15 December 2013) and the activities on 

the Grand Parade related to the passing on of 

former President Nelson Mandela in December 

2013, for what was traditionally our best month. 

•	 The last programme, namely Increased Public 

Profile and Positive Perception Across all 

Sectors of the Community, is undeniably the 

one in which we excelled the most. Income from 

events, film and fashion shoots increased from 

R426 950 in 2012/13 to R585 200 this year. We 

also saved on the marketing collateral, given 

the massive free media exposure elicited by the 

many cultural events.

Under the slogan “Bringing People to the Castle and 

Taking the Castle to the People”, the CCB hosted 

a series of successful events to create greater 

awareness of this world renowned heritage site.

Some of these historic events that collectively attracted 

thousands of people and massive print and electronic 

media interest, were: 

•	 The highly successful colloquium initiated 

by the Department of International 

Relations and Cooperation and ACCORD 

on Nelson Mandela International Day 

2013 with 120 people attending; 

•	 the 24th of September Heritage Day 

celebrations (4 500);

•	 the 27th of September International 

Tourism Day Celebrations (400);

•	 the 1st of December Emancipation of 

Slaves Day that also involved 60 learners 

from Inanda in KZN (1000);

•	 the 23rd of December Christmas Festival 

for Homeless Cape Flats Kids (200); 

Calvyn Gilfellan addresses the crowd at the Castle’s historic 

Emancipation of the Slaves Commemoration Event on  

1 December 2013.

SABC3’s Top Billing team paid a visit to the Castle’s 

underground water channels.
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•	 the 11th of February Opening of 

the Anglo-Zulu War Exhibition with 

representatives from the Royal House 

(300); and 

•	 the 23rd of March Human Rights Day 

Celebrations (600). 

With reference to the latter, it was the first time in the 

history of the Castle that a community radio station 

broadcasted directly from it for the entire day.

requests For roll-oVer oF Funds

In October 2013, after a protracted process, National 

Treasury and the Executive Authority approved the 

application by the CCB for the retention of historic and 

current surpluses. As reported elsewhere, access to 

the said funds significantly increased the capacity of 

the organization to fulfil its constitutional and other 

mandates. 

supplY CHaIn ManaGeMent 

One of the perennial findings of the past couple 

of years, was that the Board did not provide an 

oversight function to ensure the implementation of 

the appropriate supply chain management policies 

as required by the PFMA, and that the policy had 

not adhered to the requirements of the Treasury 

Regulations and the PPPFA.

The CCB SCM Policy has now been updated 

and adopted by the Board. In addition, we have 

registered on the Western Cape Suppliers Database 

(Tradeworld), an electronic procurement platform, and 

in so doing, removed a number of our procurement 

challenges.

The Finance Unit is also recording all technical 

non-compliance cases in an Irregular Expenditure 

Register and submits it to the Board quarterly. 

The strengthening of the Finance Unit through the 

appointment of the Internal Audit service provider 

and CFO in quarter four further enhanced our SCM 

environment.

eConoMIC VIaBIlItY 

In its current format, small as it is, the CCB is arguably 

one of government’s most economically viable and 

efficient public entities; hence its ability to accumulate 

a surplus of R13.9 million over the last decade.

Nokuthula Radebe and Eric Prinsloo at the filming of an episode of  

SABC 1 Travel Show Vaya Mzantsi.

The late Marji Geldenhuys artist and performer with Chief 

Hennie van Wyk on Heritage Day 2013.
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However, we are acutely aware that this was 

not entirely due to our own efforts, hence our 

immense gratefulness towards the following 

partners in conservation and tourism:

•	 the R103 million planned investment by 

the Department of Defence towards the 

upgrade and maintenance of the Castle 

in 2014;

•	 their R2.1 million annual funding of the 

eight military posts associated with our 

Military Museum, as well as

•	 the R1.2 m per annum from the 

Departments of Public Works for the on-

site gardening and maintenance team. 

Should any of these supporting initiatives 

be discontinued, we would obviously 

have to reassess the status quo, because 

conservation and maintenance are very costly 

endeavours.

To ensure that we retain our healthy economic 

position, our Executive Authority invested our 

surplus in activities and programmes that will 

sustain us. We have set aside resources to 

upgrade the restaurant and coffee shop, as 

well as the Castle entrance – moves that paid 

off immediate dividends. In the new financial 

year we shall increase our revenue generation 

capacity through the development of a well-

researched, responsible Revenue Generation 

Strategy.

Top and middle pictures: Actors on set of the movie “Book of 

Negroes” filmed at the Castle in February 2014.  

Bottom picture: Zulu dancers at the opening of the Anglo-Zulu War 

Exhibition in the Castle’s Military Museum, 12 February 2014.
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FoCus durInG tHe neW FInanCIal Year

Building on the major advances achieved during the 

year under review, we are committed to achieve even 

more, focusing on the following:

•	 positioning the Castle for World Heritage Status;

•	 driving our economic sustainability;

•	 the illumination of the Castle in line with world 

heritage tourist icons, ie the Eiffel Tower, 

Pyramids and London Bridge;

•	 managing the multi-million rand renovation of 

the Castle;

•	 the commemoration of WW1 and WW2;

•	 the tangible reinterpretation and representation 

of the full Castle story, particularly focusing on 

indigenous Khoisan people;

•	 staging a series of events, focusing on the 

Castle as a Place for Reflection, Healing and 

Nation Building; and

•	 transforming the Castle management team into 

a high performance unit.

aCknoWledGeMent and appreCIatIon 

I wish to express a sincere word of gratitude towards 

the following persons and institutions who significantly 

contributed towards the growth and development of 

the entire organization: The Board Chairperson and 

every Board member, the Ministry of Defence and 

Military Veterans, the Deputy Minister of DIRCO, 

the Chairperson of CONTRALESA Western Cape, 

National Treasury, the DOD CFO, the British High 

Commissioner, the Dutch Consulate, the Audit 

Committee Chairperson and his team, the Department 

of Public Works, SAHRA, IZIKO Museums, the City of 

Cape Town, and last but not least, all Castle clients, 

members of the Castle inter-stakeholder committee, 

the staff of the CCB who ultimately delivers our noble 

mandate to the people of South Africa.

Finally, I dedicate this report to the memory of Corporal 

Khaya Mbenenge, a dear colleague, compatriot and 

true Castle devotee whom we lost in November 2013.

Calvyn Travers Gilfellan

Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer 

Castle Control Board

30 May 2014

Image of the late King Cethswayo in the Castle Military 

Museum.
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Chairperson of the Board

Lt. General (Ret) JT Nkonyane

30 May 2014

 

Accounting Officer

Calvyn Travers Gilfellan

30 May 2014

5.  stateMent oF responsIBIlItY and ConFIrMatIon oF aCCuraCY For tHe 
annual report

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual financial statements audited 

by the Auditor General.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines as issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP, 

the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), the Castle Management Act of South Africa, 1993 

(Act 207 of 1993) and all other standards applicable to the public entity.

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the judgements 

made regarding this information.

The accounting authority is responsible for the establishing and implementation of Internal Controls. A system of 

internal control has been designed to provide reasonable assurance relating to the integrity and reliability of the 

performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are bound to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources 

information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

Yours faithfully 
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6. strateGIC oVerVIeW

6.1 VIsIon 

The Castle of Good Hope shall be a centre of global 

significance that is the embodiment of social, cultural 

and military heritage and truly accessible to all citizens 

of South Africa and the world.

6.2 MIssIon

The Castle Control Board is a service-oriented public 

entity, striving to create an environment where national 

pride serves to:

•	 Build an internationally known and recognised 

cultural and heritage brand for Ubuntu, dialogue, 

nation-building and human rights recognition;

•	 Guarantee the development of a smooth 

functioning, self-sustaining, “must-see” iconic 

visitor and learner destination;

•	 Optimises its tourism potential and accessibility 

to the public; and

•	 Preserve and protect its cultural and military 

heritage by elevating it to UNESCO World 

Heritage status.

6.3 Values

The Castle Control Board, in its management of the 

Castle of Good Hope, has committed to infuse its 

programmatic and other corporate activities with the 

following core values:

•	 Service quality and excellence

•	 Operate with honesty and dignity

•	 Respect for the diversity in military, cultural and 

social history

•	 Genuine partnerships and collaborative 

relationships

•	 Community engagement and inclusivity

•	 Fiscal responsibility, accountability, transparency 

and sustainability

7.  leGIslatIVe and otHer 
Mandates

The Castle Control Board is established in terms of 

the Castle Management Act of South Africa 1993 (Act 

No. 207 of 1993) to govern and manage the Castle 

of Good Hope on behalf of the Minister of Defence 

and Military Veterans. It is furthermore a designated 

The Castle of Good Hope is also an animal-friendly destination!
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Schedule 3A Public Entity as defined in the Public 

Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999). 

The Defence Endowment Property and Account Act, 

1922 (Act No. 33 of 1922) designate the Castle of 

Good Hope as defence endowment property that 

was transferred to the ‘defence organisations’ for 

the exclusive use by and benefit of the SANDF and 

DOD&MV. 

Given the global heritage significance of the Castle, 

the National Heritage Resources Act, Act 25 of 1999 

is applicable because the Castle of Good Hope is a 

declared heritage site and should be managed within 

the legislative framework. We also utilize Tourism 

policies and frameworks to guide our interventions and 

programmes.

While the Board has identified gaps in the 1993 

Castle Management Act, it fully acknowledges that 

the process to drive the legislative review shall be 

undertaken by the DOD&MV’s Legislative Drafting 

Directorate. The Board has engaged the said 

Directorate and provided a broad outline of some of 

the issues to be addressed in the legislative review. In 

its annual strategic planning session held on  

15 August 2013, additional information was acquired 

and the Board will also provide input into the formal 

consultation process at the appropriate time.

8. orGanIsatIonal struCture 

8.1 tHe Castle Control Board
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8.2 tHe CCB’s operatIonal ManaGeMent struCture

*Although appointed in March, the CFO only started on 1 April 2014.

Tourism & Events 

Coordinator

Ms Rayhaanah Begg

Castle Precinct Coordinator

Vacant

Castle Manager (SANDF)

Capt. Francois Morkel

Chief Financial Officer/Fin. 

Manager

Mr Mandla Ngewu*

Board Secretary

Mr Derek Williams

Executive Director/CEO

Calvyn Gilfellan
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agencies, exhibitors, performers, cultural organizations, 

traditional authorities, filming companies, event-

organizers, Military institutions and the like. 

The responsible commercialization of the Castle of 

Good Hope as a heritage site requires circumspection 

and proper environmental impact assessments. This 

will ensure the integrity and authenticity of South 

Africa’s oldest functional architectural structure. A fully-

fledged Integrated Conservation Management Plan 

is both a statutory requirement and an operational 

imperative. Given the price tag of such a study, the 

CCB approached the Department for assistance and 

is optimistic that the roll-out will happen in the new 

financial year.

In the meantime the CCB used cultural environmental 

specialists and heritage architects (or solicited 

guidance and support from IZIKO and SAHRA) to 

assess the implications of all the tourism and heritage 

initiatives it hosted or planned to host over the MTEF.

The ability of the Board to deliver its full range of 

services to the public is also dependent on close 

collaboration with the DOD&MV and other line 

and/or support departments and institutions, as 

well as external experts. Therefore, the Board has 

strengthened its established relationships with key 

DOD units such as the CFO’s Office, Strategy & 

Planning, the Legal Office and the Office of the 

PARt B:  

PeRFoRMAnce  
InFoRMAtIon 

1.  audItor’s report: 
predeterMIned oBJeCtIVes

The AGSA as auditor currently performs the necessary 

audit procedures on the performance information to 

provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit 

conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance 

against predetermined objectives is included in the 

report to management with material findings being 

reported under the heading Predetermined Objectives 

in the section headed Report on other legal and 

regulatory requirements of the auditor’s report.

Refer to pages 62–67 of the Auditor General’s Report, 

published as Part E: Financial Information.

2. sItuatIonal analYsIs

2.1 serVICe delIVerY enVIronMent

The Castle Control Board is responsible for the overall 

management, maintenance and promotion of the 

Castle of Good Hope as a heritage site and tourism 

attraction.

In terms of this legislative mandate, the organization 

is expected to provide a range of public services 

and goods on behalf of the DOD to local community 

members, tourists, learners, students, conservation 
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Minister’s Chief of Staff. We also managed to establish 

and develop new strategic relationships in order to 

support the Minister’s initiatives. 

The Castle of Good Hope played a major role in 

supporting efforts by the tourism, conservation 

and education industries to deliver to the public. 

As a bastion of heritage, the Castle also played an 

important role in major military as well as cultural 

events, in close collaboration with stakeholders, 

including but not limited to, the Parliament of South 

Africa, DPW, SAHRA, Iziko Museums of South Africa, 

Cape Town Heritage Trust and the City of Cape Town.

Close relations exist with stakeholders also 

represented on the Castle Control Board, therefore 

sharing and assisting in management efforts as part of 

the strategic objectives of the Castle Control Board as 

stipulated in the Castle Management Act. 

In this regard, the CCB has taken a firm decision 

to formalize its relationships by the signing of 

memoranda of understanding. The CCB is also mindful 

that stakeholders require a more open communication 

of its activities and achievements hence a massive 

increase in public relationship and media activity 

during the year under review. However, the Board 

has taken a deliberate decision that a partnership for 

the sake of partnerships is no longer sufficient; the 

partnership needs to show a return on investment.

In the past couple of months, the CCB has worked 

with the Departments of International Relations & 

Cooperation, Arts & Culture, Cooperative Governance 

& Traditional Affairs as well as Land Reform & Rural 

Development regarding the latter’s proposition to 

position the Castle as a centre for healing and 

reconciliation for the Khoi, San and other traditional 

The happy groom kissing the bride in front of De Kat.
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communities. This is in line with our mandate to 

increase general public access to the Castle.

Given the international significance of the Castle of 

Good Hope, the organization actively reached out and 

involved the Dutch and British Consulates in some of 

its major activities. These relationships are starting to 

show tangible results.

The increased awareness of the Castle and the 

positioning of the Castle as a place of reflection, 

healing and nation building placed a greater 

responsibility on the CCB to ensure that we manage 

these demands in a responsible and sensitive way. 

Because the CCB does not control the entire precinct, 

all Castle stakeholders, staff as well as the other 

on-site organizations involved, need to buy into this 

environmental change because we (the CCB) will have 

to deal with any potential fall-out or public outcry.

2.2 orGanIsatIonal enVIronMent 

Although the organization has a well-structured, fully 

functional Board, the organization has a very peculiar 

management structure. As stated earlier in this report, 

this has been both a blessing and a blight in the past.

For part of the year under review, the organization 

was run by a very small staff complement which 

resulted in the overlooking of some elements of 

our mandate, despite the fact that we had access 

to three full-time SANDF members. This resulted 

in the outsourcing of some of the functions as well 

as an involvement above expectation by Board 

members, a situation that has since been resolved. 

We were also very unfortunate to have lost 

one SANDF member of staff, namely Corporal 

Khaya Mbenenge who passed on after a short 

illness. He has not been replaced and one of the 

organizational risks is indeed the potential loss and 

non-replacement of DOD-remunerated staff. To deal 

with the staff shortage over the festive season, the 

chief executive appointed two short-term contract 

workers as well as casual staff members.

After appointing its CEO in April 2013, the Board 

has significantly tightened up its policy and control 

environment by reviewing and adopting the 

following policies and procedures: the SCM Policy, 

Risk Procedure, Board Charter, Audit Committee 

Charter, Delegation of Authority, Fraud Prevention 

Policy as well as a Performance Management 

The Castle of Good Hope is also becoming a popular Wedding destination.
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System. The internalization of these policies and 

procedures are now underway. The appointment 

of the Internal Auditors and Chief Financial 

Officer towards the end of the year closed one 

of the last corporate governance loops in its 

repertoire.

The organization has shown significant progress 

and as a result of the drive to ensure good 

corporate governance, it is now better positioned 

than ever to discharge its full mandate.

It undertook to seriously look at all the remaining 

adverse audit findings and ensure that the 

necessary actions were taken to significantly 

reduce and eliminate these findings in the 

subsequent financial years. In the previous 

reporting year, the AGSA chastised the Board for 

the way in which the KPIs have been formulated 

and captured in the APP. Our in-year attempts to 

correct these have not been successful but have 

now been adjusted to articulate all of the above 

in a simpler and quantifiable manner.

The management of the organization is 

performed on an “enterprise risk management” 

basis i.e. the most important risks that would 

potentially compromise our ability to attain our 

strategic objectives are articulated in a Risk 

Register, ranked and regularly evaluated.

Given that we also have a precinct-wide 

responsibility, other on-site partners are engaged 

in a monthly meeting where issues of communal 

concern are discussed. We also circulate a 

weekly activity schedule to ensure that all Castle 

inhabitants know what is happening on the site.

SA Pop Idols winner Jody Williams performing in front of the 

statue of the Lady of Good Hope.
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2.3 keY polICY deVelopMents and 
leGIslatIVe CHanGes

In July 2013, the Board initiated a process with the 

DOD to investigate the possible review of the Castle 

Management Act (Act 207 of 1993) as it was not 

completely in line with the Constitution, the PFMA 

as well as other key pieces of legislation. Towards 

the end of the financial year, the Department’s 

legal team prepared a draft document. However, we 

decided to let it stand over for the next Executive 

Authority to pursue.

2.4 strateGIC outCoMe orIented 
Goals

The strategic outcome goals of the CCB articulated 

in the APP for the 2013/14 financial year were:

•	 To ensure effective administrative 

management in terms of corporate 

governance and professional competent 

corporate image towards optimal resource 

support and public relations;

•	 To develop the museum and interpretive 

components of the Castle and its related 

themes through continuous research and 

development;

•	 To ensure promotion of the Castle as a must-see 

and vibrant tourist destination accessible to all 

the citizens of South Africa and the world; and

•	 To ensure the accessibility of the Castle as an 

attractive and user-friendly centre of cultural 

significance by all sectors of the community.

Young participants enjoying themselves at the Annual Youth Radio Awards held in the Old Recruitment Building at the Castle.

Military Museum Curator Natie Greeff at the opening of the 

Anglo-Zulu War Exhibition.
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3.  perForManCe InForMatIon BY proGraMMe/ aCtIVItY/ oBJeCtIVe

3.1  proGraMMe 1: adMInIstratIon tHrouGH Good Corporate GoVernanCe

Strategic Objective 1: The objective of this programme was to ensure the effective administrative management in 

terms of corporate governance and a professional competent corporate image towards optimal resource support 

and public relations. It covers the areas of administration, corporate governance, financial management, human 

resource management and stakeholder communication.

Table 1: Administration Through Good Corporate Governance

Programme 1: 
Administration Through Good Corporate Governance

Strategic 

objectives

Actual 

Achievement 

2012/13

Planned Target

2013/2014

Actual 

Achievement

2013/2014

Deviation 

from planned 

target to Actual 

Achievement 

for 2013/2014

Comment on 

deviations

Number of Castle 

Control Board 

meetings

9 4 7 Exceeded target 

by 3

Two (2) 

extraordinary 

Board meetings 

were held to 

finalise the ED’s 

appointment and 

contract and 

another (1) to bid 

farewell to the 

chairperson. 

Number of 

Audit and Risk 

Committee 

meetings

4 4 3 Missed target 

by 1

Although the 

Audcom had 

more than four 

(4) meetings, the 

engagements with 

the AGSA were 

not recorded as 

such.
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3.2 proGraMMe 2: preserVatIon, InterpretatIon and sHoWCasInG oF tHe HIstorY 
oF tHe Castle

Strategic Objective 2: The objective of this programme was to develop the museum and interpretative components 

of the Castle and its related themes, through continuous research and development projects, in order to establish 

effective exhibitions and strive towards maximum educational outreach, and to ensure professional and effective 

immovable heritage asset management in line with SAHRA guidelines through the establishment of a proper 

networking platform with role players.

Table 2: The Preservation, Interpretation and Showcasing of the History of the Castle

Programme 2:  
The Preservation, Interpretation and Showcasing of the History of the Castle

Key 

Performance 

Indicators

Actual 

Achievement 

2012/13

Planned Target

2013/2014

Actual 

Achievement

2013/2014

Deviation 

from planned 

target to Actual 

Achievement 

for 2013/2014

Comment on 

deviations

Number of 

learners visiting 

the Castle of 

Good Hope.

29 012 25 200 29 391 Exceeded target 

by 4 191

The collective 

marketing efforts 

and programmes 

of the CCB and its 

partners such as 

Iziko could have 

attributed to this 

healthy increase

Expenditure for 

maintenance and 

development of 

displays at the 

Military Museum

R254 174 R259 000 R262 764 On target
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Table 2 (continued): The Preservation, Interpretation and Showcasing of the History of the Castle

Programme 2: (continued)  
The Preservation, Interpretation and Showcasing of the History of the Castle

Key 

Performance 

Indicators

Actual 

Achievement 

2012/13

Planned Target

2013/2014

Actual 

Achievement

2013/2014

Deviation 

from planned 

target to Actual 

Achievement 

for 2013/2014

Comment on 

deviations

Repairs and 

Maintenance 

of the Castle of 

Good Hope

R122 006 R797 000 R117 518 Missed target by 

R679 482 

This significant 

underspent is 

due to bona fide 

savings in lieu 

of the DPW and 

DOD preventative 

maintenance 

on the site, 

anticipation 

of the major 

Castle overhaul 

to take place 

in the new year 

and imprecise 

budgeting at the 

beginning of the 

MTEF cycle.

Expenditure 

to ensure a 

clean and safe 

environment.

R195 040 R271 000 R276 605 On target
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3.3 proGraMMe 3: MaXIMIsInG tHe tourIsM potentIal oF tHe Castle oF Good Hope

Strategic Objective 3: The objective of this programme is to ensure the promotion of the Castle as a must-see and 

vibrant tourist destination, accessible to all citizens of South Africa and the world; networking with local and national 

tourist organisations and utilising suitable opportunities to establish educational and social programmes.

Table 3: Maximising the Tourism Potential of the Castle of Good Hope

Programme 3:  
Maximising the Tourism Potential of the Castle of Good Hope

Key 

Performance 

Indicator

Actual 

Achievement 

2012/13

Planned Target

2013/2014

Actual 

Achievement

2013/2014

Deviation 

from planned 

target to Actual 

Achievement 

for 2013/2014

Comment on 

deviations

Total expected 

number of visitors 

to the Castle of 

Good Hope.

140 888 145 000 141 084 Missed target by 

3 916 (2.7%)

The closing 

of the Castle 

(15 December 

2013) and 

activities on the 

Grand Parade 

around the 

passing on of 

former President 

Nelson Mandela 

in December 

2013 saw a 

decrease for what 

is usually our 

best month. We 

are nevertheless 

slightly up on the 

previous financial 

year.
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3.4 proGraMMe 4: InCreased puBlIC proFIle and posItIVe perCeptIon aCross all 
seCtors oF tHe CoMMunItY

Strategic Objective 4: The objective of this programme is to ensure the accessibility of the Castle as an attractive 

and user-friendly centre of cultural significance by all sectors of the community and that it is also promoted to the 

business and corporate community as a high profile conference and functions venue.

Table 4: Increased Public Profile and Positive Perception Across All Sectors of the Community

Programme 4:  
Increased Public Profile and Positive Perception Across All Sectors of the Community

Key 

Performance 

Indicators

Actual 

Achievement 

2012/13

Planned Target

2013/2014

Actual 

Achievement

2013/2014

Deviation 

from planned 

target to Actual 

Achievement 

for 2013/2014

Comment on 

deviations

Projected income 

from events, 

film and fashion 

shoots.

R426 950 R275 625 R585 200 Exceeded target 

by R309 575

As the public 

exposure and 

image of the 

Castle is boosted, 

so does its 

appeal as a 

filming, events 

and exhibition 

site; hence 

the significant 

overachievement

Printing, 

publication and 

marketing of the 

Castle of Good 

Hope.

R95 234 R104 000 R69 011 Missed target by 

R34 989

With the 

appointment 

of the chief 

executive (who 

is a marketing 

expert) all 

marketing 

collateral was 

reviewed and 

some canned; 

hence this saving



CASTLE CONTROL BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014 29

strateGY to oVerCoMe areas oF under-
perForManCe

Of the nine (9) pre-determined objectives articulated 

in the 2013/14 Annual Performance Plan of the CCB, 

only two (2) were not fully met. 

In the case of the KPI that dealt with visitor numbers, 

there were clear mitigating circumstances, as set out 

in the last column of the relevant table. In addition, 

visitor numbers are very sensitive to external 

factors, however it was decided not to decrease 

the performance targets over the MTEF but instead 

significantly intensify our marketing and promotional 

endeavours so as to increase the number of feet 

through our gates.

The KPI regarding maintenance will remain a difficult 

one because one cannot accurately predict what 

maintenance would be needed next. It is a guestimate 

but we will reduce the budgeted amount in light of the 

multi-million upgrade planned for the next financial 

year.

CHanGes to planned tarGets

No targets were changed and our attempts to effect 

a technical adjustment in the manner which the KPIs 

were articulated (as opposed to the changing of 

targets) were not successful. This also has an effect 

on how the targets are measured and appraised. The 

overall performance of the CCB will only become 

apparent through a study of the full report.
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lInkInG perForManCe WItH BudGets

The following tables deal with the financial resources deployed to meet our strategic objectives and specific KPIs: 

The financial information agrees to the information in the annual financial statements.

Table 5: Linking performance with budgets

2012/2013 2013/2014

Programme/

activity/

objective

Budget Actual

Expenditure

(Over)/Under 

Expenditure

Budget Actual

Expenditure

(Over)/Under 

Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration 

through corporate 

governance

2 342 1 657 685 2 526 2 345 181

Preservation 

and protection 

of military and 

cultural heritage 

3 565 703 2 862 1 463 678 790

Maximising the 

Castle’s tourism 

potential

65 68 (3) 67 48 17

Increased 

public profile 

and positive 

perception of the 

Castle

96 95 1 104 211 (107)*

CCB corporate 

events – drawn 

from surplus
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4. reVenue ColleCtIon

Table 6: Revenue collection

2012/2013 2013/2014

Sources of 

revenue

Estimate Actual

Amount 

Collected

(Over)/ 

Under 

Collection

Estimate Actual 

Amount 

Collected

(Over)/Under 

Collection

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Ticket Sales 1 800 1 838 (38) 1 900 1 943 (43)

Rental Income 1 050 670 380 1 560 728 832

Other Income 100 324 (124) Mil. 

Tattoo

100 205 (105)

Mil. Tattoo

Interest Income 720 585 135 600 628 (28)

Total 3 670 3 417 253 4 160 3 504 656

From the above table, it is clear that the Castle Control 

Board runs a relatively uncomplicated enterprise with 

a limited number of revenue sources. The increase in 

revenue from ticket sales is due to the slight increase 

in actual feet of visitors through our doors as well as 

the annual inflation-related increase of ticket prices.

Although rental income is slightly up, it is well 

beyond our estimates for the year. This is due to 

the performance being below standard, and the 

subsequent inability of the Officers Club to settle an 

amount of rent for the De Goewerneur Restaurant. 

The latter has subsequently been leased to a private 

company that is already turning around this important 

income generating space.

4.1 CapItal InVestMent

The historically accumulated liquid assets were 

originally invested with two institutions, namely Rand 

Merchant Bank and ABSA Bank. During the past 

financial year it was decided to consolidate these 

investments and invest it with ABSA Bank as this 

investment carried an interest rate of 0.5% more. The 

Board has no investment in fixed property, thus no 

infrastructure projects were embarked on by the Board 

for the period under review.
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3. eXeCutIVe autHorItY

Besides the regular quarterly reports presented 

through the Defence Secretariat, it had 

communications with the EA on the following 

occasions:

•	 25 July 2013 to request permission to access 

the CCB’s R13.9 million accumulated surpluses. 

The EA’s office, after acquiring Treasury 

Approval, informed us about the positive 

outcome on 9 August 2013.

•	  4 November 2013 to request permission  

(via Treasury) to effect minor changes to our 

2013/14 KPIs. Through engagement with her 

office, it became clear that the probability of us 

getting this Treasury approval was minimal and 

the attempt was aborted.

•	 On the 18th November to invite the Minister  

to the Emancipation of Slaves Event on  

1 December as well as for the Freedom Day 

Celebrations on 17 April 2013 Celebrations – on 

both occasions her office reported that she had 

other commitments.

PARt c:  

GoVeRnAnce

1. IntroduCtIon

The CCB is extremely serious about its corporate 

governance responsibility. In fact, one of the first 

assignments that the new chief executive received, 

was to look at all the corporate governance 

infringements in the previous financial year and to 

develop and implement an action plan to deal with 

them. The Executive Authority was also informed  

about the Board’s intentions regarding this. This 

specific aspect was addressed at the quarterly  

so-called “dashboard” engagements with the AGSA, 

and significant improvement was made in this regard.

2. portFolIo CoMMIttees 

The Board engaged the Portfolio Committee twice 

during the past financial year where we met with them 

on the following dates:

•	 24 April 2013 when the Board Chairperson 

presented the full 2013/14 APP to the Portfolio 

Committee and also introduced the newly 

appointed CCB CEO to the honourable 

members.

•	 10 October 2013 when the Board Chairperson 

and CEO presented the Annual Report 

highlights. The Committee commended the 

significant progress made and raised no major 

issues.
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4.  tHe aCCountInG autHorItY: 
tHe Castle Control Board 

As a Schedule 3A Public Entity of the Department 

of Defence and Military Veterans, the Board is 

constituted in a specific fashion so as to reflect its 

diverse stakeholder interest. In terms of the Castle 

Management Act, the Castle of Good Hope has 

been placed under the juristic control of the Castle 

Control Board, where the Act furthermore stipulates 

certain conditions in terms of the composition of the 

Castle Control Board, including, but not limited to, the 

following:

•	 The Board comprises of representatives of the 

various national and provincial stakeholders, as 

specifically referred to in the Act.

•	 The chairperson of the Board shall be appointed 

by SAHRA as a member of the Board, with 

the exclusion of the Officer Commanding Army 

Support Base Western Cape and the Executive 

Director, who are not electable as chairperson. 

•	 Appointment of members, and alternates 

appointed as representatives of stakeholders, 

is for a period of two (2) years except for the 

Officer Commanding Army Support Base 

Western Cape and the Executive Director 

who will remain appointed members to the 

Board as long as they serve in their respective 

capacities in the service of such stakeholder.

•	 The Vice Chairperson is to be elected by 

Board members and the Executive Director will 

act as Secretary to the Board. A quorum for a 

meeting comprises the Chairperson or Vice 

Chairperson and at least six (6) members.

After the appointment of their Executive Director 

(CEO), the Board adopted a firm stance in respect 

of the day-to-day management of the organization. 

The Board Charter and Code of Ethics and Business 

Conduct and Fraud Prevention Plan have been 

updated and adopted. In order to separate the role of 

the Board and executive management, a Delegation 

of Authority has also been developed and adopted in 

the previous quarter. 
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Table 7: Board Committees 

Committee No� of meetings held No� of members Name of members

Audit & Risk Committee 3 3 Adv. Dave Mitchell 

(Chairman), Ms Faeza Allie 

(Member)

Mr Dirk Rossouw (Member) 

&  

Mr Calvyn Gilfellan (ED)

reMuneratIon oF Board MeMBers

Board members represent a particular stakeholder organization and an agreement was made that each statutory 

organization takes care of the travel and other expenses related to the member’s attendance at Board meetings. 

The exceptions are the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the Executive Director and the Board Secretary. This 

situation should be reviewed with the appointment of the new Board.

Table 8: Remuneration of Board members

Name Remuneration Other allowance Other  

re-imbursements

Total

Lt Gen J.T. Nkonyane Nil Nil Nil Nil

Col R. Mongo Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ms R. Omar Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr F. Johnson Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr G. Ontong Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr K. Jimba Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr D. Hart Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr M. Parker Nil Nil Nil Nil

Adv. D. Mitchell Nil R6 784 Nil R6784*

Ms A. Aggenbach Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr C.T. Gilfellan R694 500 R111 600 Nil R806 100**

Mr D Williams R182 700 Nil Nil R182 700**

Notes: *In his capacity as Audit Committee Chairperson
**In their capacity as full-time employees of the Board
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Table 9:  Composition of the Board

Name Designation (in terms  

of the Public Entity 

Board structure)

Date  

appoint ed

Date  

re signed

Qualifications Area of Expertise Board Directorships  

(List the entities)

Other Committees or Task 

Teams (e�g�: Audit committee / 

Ministerial task team)

No� of 

meetings  

at tended

Lt Gen J.T. Nkonyane Chairperson (Department 

of Defence)

October 2008 BSc (Stats and Fin Acc), MBL Strategy, Financial and Business 

Process Management

N/A N/A 6

Col M. R. Mongo Officer Commanding 

Army Support Base WC

January 2012 Advanced Diploma in Defence 

and Strategic Studies

Military Management N/A N/A 2

Ms R. Omar Iziko Museums November 2010 Governance, Management, 

Strategy, Heritage, Finance.

Groote Constantia,  

Director on the Board

President of the Commonwealth 

Association of Museums

3

Mr F. Johnson Department of Public 

Works

October 2010 National Higher Diploma in 

Building Management.

Building Management N/A N/A 3

Mr G. Ontong South African Heritage 

Resources Agency

April 2010 Masters Degree in Town and 

Regional planning

Heritage planning and 

conservation

N/A N/A 5

Mr K. Jimba Cape Town Regional 

Chamber of Commerce 

and Industry

February 2012 Matric Business Marketing & 

Communication.

N/A None 4

Mr D. Hart City of Cape Town September 2008 BA (Hons) Heritage management N/A N/A 5

Mr M. Parker WESGRO (Tourism) February 2012 October 2013 Tourism management N/A N/A 2

Adv. D. Mitchell One of two appointments 

by the Minister of 

Defence

September 2008 B.Com. LL.B., B.Compt 

(Hons), C.A.(S.A.), CFA, 

Advocate of the High Court 

of S.A. Chartered Accountant 

(S.A.)

Governance, military history & 

museums

Chairman of Trustees (West Coast 

Fossil Park Trust)

Chairman of Trustees (Castle 

Military Museum Foundation)

Trustee (Cape Town Highlanders 

Trust)

Director (St. Dunstan’s  

Association for S.A. War-Blinded 

Veterans NPC)

Chairperson of Audit & Risk 

Committee (Castle Control Board) 

Chairperson of Audit Committee 

(S.A. Institute for Drug Free Sport)

Member of Audit Committee (S.A. 

Heritage Resources Agency)

Chairperson of Audit Committee 

(BP Medical Aid Society

5

Ms A. Aggenbach One of two appointments 

by the Minister of 

Defence

September 2008 BA Fine Arts (US)

Professional Postgraduate 

Diploma in Museology (US)

Conservation of the Built 

Environment / Museology

Chairperson of Strategic 

Committee

7

Vacant Western Cape Provincial 

Legislature

0

Mr C.T. Gilfellan Executive Director April 2013 Masters Degree Arts Tourism, Marketing and 

governance

De Poort Cultural Village, Paarl N/A 7

Mr D Williams Board Secretary April 2012 Matric Financial management N/A N/A 7
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Table 9:  Composition of the Board

Name Designation (in terms  

of the Public Entity 

Board structure)

Date  

appoint ed

Date  

re signed

Qualifications Area of Expertise Board Directorships  

(List the entities)

Other Committees or Task 

Teams (e�g�: Audit committee / 

Ministerial task team)

No� of 

meetings  

at tended

Lt Gen J.T. Nkonyane Chairperson (Department 

of Defence)

October 2008 BSc (Stats and Fin Acc), MBL Strategy, Financial and Business 

Process Management

N/A N/A 6

Col M. R. Mongo Officer Commanding 

Army Support Base WC

January 2012 Advanced Diploma in Defence 

and Strategic Studies

Military Management N/A N/A 2

Ms R. Omar Iziko Museums November 2010 Governance, Management, 

Strategy, Heritage, Finance.

Groote Constantia,  

Director on the Board

President of the Commonwealth 

Association of Museums

3

Mr F. Johnson Department of Public 

Works

October 2010 National Higher Diploma in 

Building Management.

Building Management N/A N/A 3

Mr G. Ontong South African Heritage 

Resources Agency

April 2010 Masters Degree in Town and 

Regional planning

Heritage planning and 

conservation

N/A N/A 5

Mr K. Jimba Cape Town Regional 

Chamber of Commerce 

and Industry

February 2012 Matric Business Marketing & 

Communication.

N/A None 4

Mr D. Hart City of Cape Town September 2008 BA (Hons) Heritage management N/A N/A 5

Mr M. Parker WESGRO (Tourism) February 2012 October 2013 Tourism management N/A N/A 2

Adv. D. Mitchell One of two appointments 

by the Minister of 

Defence

September 2008 B.Com. LL.B., B.Compt 

(Hons), C.A.(S.A.), CFA, 

Advocate of the High Court 

of S.A. Chartered Accountant 

(S.A.)

Governance, military history & 

museums

Chairman of Trustees (West Coast 

Fossil Park Trust)

Chairman of Trustees (Castle 

Military Museum Foundation)

Trustee (Cape Town Highlanders 

Trust)

Director (St. Dunstan’s  

Association for S.A. War-Blinded 

Veterans NPC)

Chairperson of Audit & Risk 

Committee (Castle Control Board) 

Chairperson of Audit Committee 

(S.A. Institute for Drug Free Sport)

Member of Audit Committee (S.A. 

Heritage Resources Agency)

Chairperson of Audit Committee 

(BP Medical Aid Society

5

Ms A. Aggenbach One of two appointments 

by the Minister of 

Defence

September 2008 BA Fine Arts (US)

Professional Postgraduate 

Diploma in Museology (US)

Conservation of the Built 

Environment / Museology

Chairperson of Strategic 

Committee

7

Vacant Western Cape Provincial 

Legislature

0

Mr C.T. Gilfellan Executive Director April 2013 Masters Degree Arts Tourism, Marketing and 

governance

De Poort Cultural Village, Paarl N/A 7

Mr D Williams Board Secretary April 2012 Matric Financial management N/A N/A 7
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delegation of authority and the appointment of internal 

SCM committees have radically strengthened the 

internal control environment. 

7.  Internal audIt and audIt 
CoMMIttees

The CCB did not have a fully-functional Internal 

Audit function for the majority of the year under 

review. This delay was mainly due to the fact that the 

Board requested the CEO to ensure that the service 

provider was appointed by means of a fair and open 

procurement process. Sizwe-Ntsaluba Gobodo was 

appointed in the last quarter of the year to fulfil the 

following functions:

•	 Evaluate the effectiveness of controls over 

the reliability and integrity of information for 

management processes, including performance 

measurement.

•	 Ascertain the level of compliance with plans, 

policies, procedures, directives, laws and 

regulations.

•	 Assess the adequacy and effectiveness of 

controls to safeguard assets, including intangible 

and non-financial assets.

•	 Appraise the economies and efficiencies with 

which resources are employed.

•	 Review operations to ascertain whether 

established objectives and goals are being 

achieved as planned.

•	 Assist management in identifying business risks 

and in assessing the adequacy of their risk 

management and governance processes.

Although it is still early days, the working relationship 

between the Internal Audit team, management, the 

Audit Committee and the AGSA, is excellent and 

5. rIsk ManaGeMent

Since the second quarter of the financial year, the 

Board has endeavoured to put together a framework 

for a risk management policy and strategy. Given the 

delegations of Authority and segregation of duties, the 

Board has appointed management to spearhead this 

important part of the entity’s work and has adopted a 

Risk-based Enterprise Development approach to its 

work.

Management has developed a Risk Register (adopted 

by the Board), which forms the basis for regular risk 

assessments to determine the effectiveness of its 

risk management strategy and to identify new and 

emerging risks.

This is a standard item on the CCB’s Audit and Risk 

Committee that advises management on the overall 

system of risk management, especially the justification 

of unacceptable levels of risk.

This step, in conjunction with the appointment of the 

Internal Audit function and the CFO in the last quarter, 

has seen a significant improvement in the overall 

effectiveness of the entity’s operational and control 

environment.

6. Internal Control unIt

The CCB has traditionally been a very small 

organization with limited staff, and hence limited 

segregation of duties and responsibilities and weak 

internal controls. The latter has been alleviated through 

a strong functioning Audit Committee and the efforts 

of individual Board members. Since the appointment 

of Executive Director, key appointments (with clear 

duties and responsibilities), regular meetings, clear 
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some of the preliminary work around the review of key 

policies and the Internal Audit Charter was completed 

by year-end.

The Audit & Risk Committee, under the exemplary 

leadership of Advocate Dave Mitchell, has been 

invaluable to the strides that have been made in the 

CCB policy, oversight as well as control environments. 

The Audit Committee members’ active participation 

in matters related to financial management, 

organizational performance, corporate governance, 

risk and oversight is undeniably the major reason 

for the smooth, strategic operation of the Board as a 

whole.

8.  CoMplIanCe WItH laWs and 
reGulatIons

In the 2012/13 Audit, the findings in this area related 

to the fact that the AFS were not prepared in terms of 

section 55 (1) of the PFMA, surpluses not approved in 

terms of section 53 (3) of the PFMA, expenditure not 

managed in terms of section 51 (1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA, 

internal audit not established in terms of 51 (1)(a)(ii) 

of the PFMA, SCM not done in terms of the relevant 

sections of Treasury Regulations 16A6.3 and the 

PPPFA, and strategic planning not done in terms of 

Treasury Regulation 30.1.3(d).

This year’s audit proves that the majority of these 

matters have been addressed to the satisfaction of the 

Board, the Executive Authority and the AGSA. 

9. Fraud and CorruptIon

Although the CCB does not have an anti-criminality 

plan, it has a fully-fledged Fraught Prevention Policy 

that also addresses criminality.

The aims and purpose of the plan is to introduce a 

common mechanism to guide all staff to reducing fraud 

to an absolute minimum; introduce ways to ensure 

that resources are used for providing better care and 

quality of services; and ensure that any form of waste 

is regarded unacceptable by all employees.

Table 10: Audit Committee

Name Qualifications Internal or 

external

If internal, 

position in 

the public 

entity

Date 

appointed

Date 

Resigned

No� of 

Meetings 

attended

Mr D Mitchell B.Com. LL.B., B.Compt (Hons), 

C.A.(S.A.), CFA, Advocate of 

the High Court of S.A. 

Chartered Accountant (S.A.)

Internal Board 

Member

May 2012 N/A 4

Mr D Rossouw MBA External – May 2012 N/A 3

Ms F Allie Certificate Ass Management External – May 2012 N/A 3

Mr C Gilfellan Masters Degree in Arts Ex-Officio Board 

Member

15 April 2013 N/A 3
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It further aims to make losses due to fraud and 

corruption intolerable so that citizens are not 

deprived of resources intended for their benefit. 

It is determined and committed to see fraud and 

corruption matched by insistence that the work of 

those responsible for countering fraud, is carried 

to the highest standards and is supported by well-

designed comprehensive training, covering all 

aspects of work. This training covers the whole 

spectrum from preventative through to the effective 

imposition of appropriate sanctions for those 

committing fraud to ensure that awareness of and 

involvement to counter fraud is made a general 

responsibility of all professionals.

Because the Castle of Good Hope is a hemmed-

in, well-monitored and protected citadel, access 

monitoring by SANDF is a major crime deterrent. 

It is more likely that criminal activities would 

be internally induced, and for that matter the 

DOD&MV’s functional guidelines as applied by 

the on-site military staff is more than sufficient to 

deal with the issue. In the case of big corporate 

functions at the Castle, additional private security 

is sourced and paid for by the client.

10.  MInIMIsInG ConFlICt oF 
Interest

Board Members were requested to declare their 

conflict of interest at every Board meeting. As a 

standard practice, a declaration register, which 

allows for directorships of companies, were also 

filled out.

11. Code oF ConduCt

The Board has reviewed and re-adopted a Code of 

Conduct to provide direction to all civilian officials and 

employees with regard to their relationship with the 

legislature, political and executive office-bearers, other 

employees and the public, and to indicate the spirit in 

which employees should perform their duties, what 

should be done to avoid conflict of interests and what 

is expected of them in terms of their personal conduct 

in public and private life.

Although the Code of Conduct is drafted to be as 

comprehensive as possible, it is not an exhaustive set 

of rules regulating standards of conduct. However, the 

leadership of the Castle Control Board, by virtue of 

their responsibility for the efficient management and 

administration of the Castle Control Board and the 

maintenance of discipline, are, inter alia, duty-bound 

to ensure that the conduct of their employees conform 

to the basic values and principles governing the 

Board’s administration, and the norms and standards 

as prescribed by the Board. The Board’s leadership 

should also ensure that the staff members are 

acquainted with these measures, and that they accept 

and abide by them.

The primary purpose of the Code is a positive 

one, namely to promote exemplary conduct. 

Notwithstanding this, an employee shall be guilty of 

misconduct, and may be dealt with in accordance with 

the relevant collective agreement if he/she contravenes 

any provision of this Code or fails to comply with any 

provision thereof.
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12.  HealtH saFetY and 
enVIronMental Issues

Given that the Castle of Good Hope is a quasi-

military site, health and safety is the constant concern 

of the CCB. Every precaution has been taken to 

provide a safe workplace. Regular inspections and 

safety meetings are done by the Support Services 

Manager. He also meets with management to plan and 

implement further improvements in our safety program. 

Common sense and personal interest in safety are still 

the greatest guarantees of safety at work, on the road, 

and at home.

The CCB is serious about the safety of employees and 

tourists, and any wilful or habitual violation of safety 

rules is considered to be a cause for dismissal. The 

Castle Control Board is sincerely concerned about the 

health and well-being of each member of the team.

13. Board seCretarY 

In terms of the Act, the accounting officer is 

responsible for the role and responsibilities of the 

company secretary, as well as the reports and returns. 

However, the Board has appointed Mr Derek Williams 

as secretary and the position will be reviewed as the 

organization grows.

14. soCIal responsIBIlItY

In both the Chairperson and Accounting Officer’s 

reports, it is evident that the entity takes it social 

responsibility very seriously. In fact, it dedicates an 

entire strategic objective to the increase in public 

access to the Castle of Good Hope.

We are acutely aware that, measured against 

international standards, the entrance fees of R30 and 

R15 to access our heritage offering is very reasonable, 

however still unaffordable to large sections of our 

communities. Mindful of this, we have provided free 

access to all citizens on Museum Day on 18 May 2013, 

Heritage Day on 24 September 2013, International 

Tourism Day on 27 September 2013 and Freedom 

Day in March 2014. On 1 December 2013, the 

Board partnered with the Table Mountain Cable Car 

Company, the SANDF and the West Coast Fossil Park 

to host a large group of learners from Inanda visiting 

the Cape for the first time in their lives.

In addition to this, we regularly receive requests from 

local scholars who cannot afford the R5 entry for the 

Castle. In such cases, we assess the situation and 

let the group in, either at a reduced cost or no cost at 

all. During the year we also hosted smaller groups of 

disabled and destitute youths at our various cultural 

functions and events. We also opened our venues to 

struggling NGOs and organized Khoisan and Nguni 

cultural groups.
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appointment has significantly enhanced the Board’s 

management skills and performance capability.

Internal audIt

Sizwe Ntsaluba Gobodo was appointed to provide 

internal audit services to the Castle Control Board, 

with effect from 1 April 2014. An Internal Audit Charter 

and Service Contract have been agreed and an 

Internal Audit Plan has been compiled and approved. 

A review of key operating policies and compliance 

areas is underway, together with a risk process review, 

and the impact of competent internal audit support is 

already noticeable.

15.  Castle Control Board 
– report oF tHe audIt 
CoMMIttee

We are pleased to present the Audit Committee 

Report for the Castle Control Board for the financial 

year ended 31 March 2014.

audIt CoMMIttee MeMBers and attendanCe

The Audit Committee consists of three persons all with 

the required expertise and experience in business and 

financial matters. The Committee’s chairperson is also 

a member of the Board. The Committee has met three 

times during the financial year and twice subsequently:

Table 11: Audit Committee Members and Attendance

Name of Member No� of Meetings Attended

Year to 31�3�2013 Since 31�3�2013

Adv. D. Mitchell (Chairperson) 3 2

Mrs F. Allie 3 2

Mr D. Rossouw 3 2

Representatives of the Auditor-General attended all Audit Committee meetings.

audIt CoMMIttee responsIBIlItY

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with 

its responsibilities arising from sections 51(1)(a)(ii) and 

76(4)(d) of the Public Finance Management Act and 

Treasury Regulation 27.

The Committee further reports that it has reviewed and 

updated the Audit Committee Charter during the year, 

has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter 

and has discharged its responsibilities as contained 

therein.

appoIntMent oF CHIeF FInanCIal oFFICer

Audit Committee notes with approval the appointment 

of a chief financial officer for the Castle Control Board 

on a fixed-term contract, with effect 1 April 2014. This 
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perForManCe aGaInst predeterMIned 
oBJeCtIVes

The Auditor-General has observed that performance 

targets were not specific enough to clearly identify 

the nature and required level of performance. Audit 

Committee notes that steps have already been taken 

to introduce a properly-considered performance 

management methodology in the Board’s formally 

approved strategic and annual performance plans.

CoMplIanCe

Compliance shortcomings as noted by the Auditor-

General regarding the appointment of internal auditors 

and a chief financial officer were rectified with effect 

from 1 April 2014.

In compliance with National Treasury Regulations, 

a submission has been made to the executive 

authority and National Treasury seeking confirmation 

for the retention of the Board’s modest surplus for 

the year.

eValuatIon oF FInanCIal stateMents

The Audit Committee has:

•	 reviewed and discussed the audited annual 

financial statements and performance report to 

be included in the annual report with the Auditor-

General, with management and the executive 

director, and with the Board as the CCB’s 

accounting authority

•	 reviewed the Auditor-General’s management 

report and management’s response

•	 reviewed changes in accounting policies and 

practices, as applicable.

Internal Control and aCCountInG 
reCords

Internal control is the system of controls and  

directives that are designed to provide assurance 

that assets are safeguarded, that liabilities and 

working capital are efficiently managed and that the 

Board fulfils its mandate to manage and control the 

Castle as a respected heritage site, in compliance 

with all relevant statutory and governance duties and 

prescripts.

Discussions with the Auditor-General provide 

assurance that the Castle Control Board’s internal 

controls and accounting and record-keeping 

processes are sound, effective and efficient, and 

that no unexplained instances have been reported of 

significant or material non-compliance with approved 

policies and procedures.

The Auditor-General’s observations and 

recommendations regarding areas for improvement in 

the areas of supply chain management, compliance 

and performance reporting were anticipated and have 

already been remedied. Other matters identified in the 

Auditor-General’s management letter will be monitored 

by the Audit Committee with internal audit support.

IrreGular and FruItless and WasteFul 
eXpendIture

All observed irregular expenditure has been supported 

and condoned by the Board, or has been tabled for 

condonation at the next Board meeting. The 2014 audit 

has confirmed that there was no fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure or expenditure that could have been 

avoided.
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The Committee concurs with and supports the Auditor-

General’s opinion on the annual financial statements, 

and is of the view that the audited annual financial 

statements can be accepted and read together with 

the Auditor-General’s report.

audItor-General soutH aFrICa

The Audit Committee confirms that it has met with 

the Auditor-General and that there are no unresolved 

issues pertaining to the Castle Control Board.

Adv� D� J� Mitchell, C�A� (S�A�)

Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

Date: 31 July 2014
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The South African Junior Riel Dance Champions from the Witzenberg Municipality enthralling the crowd 

of 4 500 on 24 September 2013.
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PARt D:  

HUMAn ResoURce 
MAnAGeMent

1. IntroduCtIon 

The Human Resources component of the CCB has 

been both its Achilles heel and strength. On the one 

hand its reliance on DOD-remunerated staff assigned 

to the Castle has led to significant savings, but on the 

other hand it has delayed any decisiveness as to the 

ultimate management structure of the CCB. It was only 

in the current financial year that the Board addressed 

this matter.

The perennial findings regarding HR related to the 

fact that the Board did not have a Chief Financial 

Officer for the full duration of the financial year and a 

Chief Executive Officer for 11 months of the financial 

year. The Board also did not implement effective HR 

management to ensure that adequate and sufficiently 

skilled resources are in place and that performance is 

monitored. 

It further noted that the previous Castle manager did 

not have the necessary skill of performance reporting 

in terms of the legislation, and has not been trained in 

and exposed to the requirements of the Framework for 

managing programme performance information.

In December 2013, the Board finalized its first iteration 

of a management structure which significantly whittled 

down the findings in the previous paragraph. However, 

many of the historic HR issues still remain, and 

given the fact that the organization does not have 

a dedicated HR unit, a complete review of the HR 

policies and structure of the CCB is envisaged for the 

new financial year.

Key issues to be addressed include reviewing of 

all staff contracts, development of performance 

agreements for all staff, revising the remuneration 

scales, staff contentment, staff benefits and  

obligations and building a truly high performance 

Castle team.

2.  HuMan resourCe oVersIGHt 
statIstICs 

The Castle Management comprises a total of 19 

members, of which eight (8) are remunerated and their 

performance managed by the Department of Defence. 

During the financial year, the organization has 

appointed a full-time Chief Executive and a Tourism & 

Events Coordinator. Two short-term contract staff and 

additional casual staff was also employed to assist 

during the peak tourism season.
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Table 12: Personnel Cost by programme 

Programme/activity/

objective

Total 

Expenditure 

for the entity 

(R’000)

Personnel 

Expenditure 

(R’000)

Personnel 

exp� as a % 

of total exp� 

(R’000)

No� of 

employees

Average 

personnel 

cost per 

employee 

(R’000)

Administration R2 525 R1 748 50.8% 18 R92 000

Table 13: Personnel cost by salary band

Level Personnel 

Expenditure (R’000)

% of personnel exp� 

to total personnel 

cost (R’000)

No� of employees Average personnel 

cost per employee 

(R’000)

Top Management R806 46.1% 1 R806

Senior 

Management

R42 2.4% 1 R42*

Professional 

qualified

R381 21.8% 6 R63**

Skilled R223 13.3% 2 R116***

Semi-skilled R217 12.5% 3 R72

Unskilled R69 3.9% 5 R14***

TOTAL R1 748 100% 18 R97

Notes: *Only employed from February 2014
 **Two are part-time staff members
 ***Includes casuals
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perForManCe reWards

The first CCB staff member to be appointed on a performance contract basis was the chief executive who in 

terms of his contract: “…it being recorded that the Board has resolved and undertaken that an executive director 

who substantially exceeds the stipulated performance delivery targets may be considered for a supplementary 

performance bonus depending upon the Board’s operational and financial performance – this to be capped at a 

maximum of 20% of the incumbent’s guaranteed basic annual salary.”

As part of the organizational performance framework of the CCB, all future staff appointments will be dealt with in 

this manner.

Table 14: Performance Rewards

Employment category Performance 

rewards

Personnel 

Expenditure (R’000)

% of performance 

rewards to total 

personnel cost 

(R’000)

Top Management R111 R1 748 6.4%

Senior Management – – –

Professional qualified – – –

Skilled – – –

Semi-skilled – – –

Unskilled – – –

TOTAL R111 R1 748 6.4%

Table 15: Training Costs 

Programme/activity/

objective

Personnel 

Expenditure 

(R’000)

Training 

Expenditure

(R’000)

Training 

Expenditure 

as a % of 

Personnel 

Cost�

No� of 

employees 

trained

Avg training 

cost per 

employee

Administration R1 748 Nil 0% 2 Nil*

Note: *Two tourist guides received complementary training
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Table 16: Employment and vacancies

The CCB traditionally had a very peculiar human resources component. This is partially due to the availability of 

SANDF and Department of Public Works staff on site. However, the Board articulated the necessity to employ 

additional staff to execute their full mandate. Starting with the chief executive, the Board approved a structure to 

appoint a Finance Manager (CFO), Tourism and Events Coordinator, a Precinct Manager and permanent cleaning 

staff.

Programme/activity/

objective

2012/2013 

No� of 

Employees

2013/2014 

Approved 

Posts

2013/2014 

No� of 

Employees

2013/2014 

Vacancies

% of 

vacancies

Administration 12 16 12 4 25%

Table 17: Employment and vacancies per employment category

Employment category 2011/2012 

No� of 

Employees

2012/2013 

Approved 

Posts

2013/2014

No� of 

Employees

2013/2014 

Vacancies

% of 

vacancies

Top Management – 2 1 1 50%

Senior Management – 0 1 1 0%

Professional qualified 6 6 6 0 0%

Skilled 1 1 1 0 0%

Semi-skilled 3 3 3 0 0%

Unskilled – – – 2 100%

TOTAL 10 12 12 4 25%
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eMploYMent CHanGes

Provide information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover rates provide an indication of trends 

in employment profile of the public entity.

Table 18: Employment changes

Salary Band Employment at 

beginning of 

period

Appointments Terminations Employment 

at end of the 

period

Top Management – 1 – 1

Senior Management – 1 – 1

Professional qualified 6 – – 6

Skilled 1 – – 1

Semi-skilled 3 – – 3

Unskilled – – – –

Total 10 2 – 12

Table 19: Reasons for staff leaving

Reason Number % of total no� of staff leaving

Death – –

Resignation – –

Dismissal – –

Retirement – –

Ill health – –

Expiry of contract – –

Other – –

Total – –
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Table 20: Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Nature of Disciplinary Action Number 

Verbal Warning –

Written Warning –

Final Written warning –

Dismissal –

–

Table 21: Equity Target and Employment Equity Status (Male)

Levels MALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 1 0 0

Senior Management 0 1 0 0

Professional 

qualified

2 2 0 2

Skilled 0 0 0 1

Semi-skilled 0 1 0 2

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 2 5 0 5
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Table 22: Equity Target and Employment Equity Status (Female)

Levels FEMALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 1 0 0

Professional 

qualified

1 1 0 2

Skilled 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 1 0 1

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 1 3 0 3

Table 23: Equity Target and Employment Equity Status (Disabled)

Levels Disabled Staff

Male Female

Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0

Senior Management 0 0

Professional qualified 0

Skilled 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 1

Unskilled 0 0

TOTAL 0 1







Picture of a painting of the Castle courtesy of Carol Mangiagalli and the Penny Dobbie Gallery.
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aCCountInG autHorItY’s responsIBIlItIes and approVal

The Accounting Authority is required to maintain adequate accounting records and is responsible for the content 

and integrity of the annual financial statements and related information included in this report. It is the responsibility 

of the CCB to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the entity as at the 

financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are 

engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements and were given unrestricted access 

to all financial records.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the South African Statements of Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the 

Accounting Standards Board.

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported 

by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Accounting Authority acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control 

established by the entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable 

them to meet these requirements, the Accounting Authority sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing 

the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include proper delegation of responsibilities 

within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure 

an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the entity and all employees are required 

to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s business is conducted in a manner that in 

all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the entity is on identifying, 

assessing, managing and managing all known forms of risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot be fully 

eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and 

ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Accounting Authority is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that 

the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the 

preparation of the annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only 

reasonable, and not any absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board reviewed the CCB’s cash flow forecast for the year ended 31 March 2014 and, in the light of this review 

and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the CCB has or has adequate resources to continue in 

operational existence for the foreseeable future.
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Although the Board is primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the entity, they are supported by the CCB’s 

external auditors.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the CCB’s annual financial 

statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the CCB’s external auditors and their report is 

presented on pages 62 to 67.

The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 68 to 105, which have been prepared on the going concern 

basis, were approved by the Board on 25 July 2014 and were signed on its behalf by the Chairman.

LIEUTENANT GENERAL J�T� NKONYANE

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD: CHAIRMAN
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report oF tHe aCCountInG autHorItY

1. IntroduCtIon

The Board presents the audited annual financial statements that form part of the annual report of the Castle Control 

Board for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The Castle Control Board was established by an Act of Parliament, the Castle Management Act (Act 207 of 1993) 

and is listed as a national public entity in schedule 3A of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (PFMA).

The Board of the CCB acts as the accounting authority in terms of the PFMA.

2. CoMposItIon oF tHe Board

In terms of the Castle Management Act, the Castle of Good Hope has been placed under the juristic control of 

the Castle Control Board, which comprises of the various national and provincial stakeholders. The stakeholders 

currently represented on the Castle Control Board are indicated below:

Stakeholders Name

South African National Defence Force – Chief of Logistics Lieutenant General J.T. Nkonyane (Chairman)

Cape Town Regional Chamber of Commerce and Industry Mr K. Jimba

Iziko Museums of South Africa Ms R. Omar

Department of Public Works Mr F. Johnson

South African Heritage Resources Agency Mr G. Ontong

Officer Commanding Army Support Base Western Cape Colonel K. Fischer

City of Cape Town Mr D. Hart

South African Tourism Board (WESGRO) Vacant

Appointed by the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans
Advocate D. Mitchell 

Ms A. Aggenbach

Western Cape Provincial Legislature Vacant

Executive Director Mr C.T. Gilfellan (appointed 15 April 2013)

Secretary Mr D. Williams
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3. tHe BusIness and postal address are as FolloWs:

c/o Castle and Darling Streets P O Box 1

Cape Town Cape Town

8001 8000

4. prInCIpal aCtIVItIes

The Castle Control Board is a service-orientated public entity, striving to optimise the Castle’s tourism potential and 

its accessibility to the public and to preserve and protect its cultural and military heritage.

5. eVents aFter tHe reportInG perIod

The Board is not aware of any material reportable event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of 

this report.

6. GoInG ConCern

The Board believes that the CCB has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable 

future and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Board is 

satisfied that the CCB is in sound financial position and that it has or has access to sufficient resources to meet its 

foreseeable cash requirements. The Board is not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact on 

the CCB. The Board is also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of 

any pending changes to legislation that may affect the CCB.

7. JurIsdICtIon and doMICIle

The CCB resides and is effectively managed in the Republic of South Africa.

8. audItors

In accordance with section 20 of the Castle Management Act the Auditor General South Africa acts as auditors of 

the CCB.

9. eXeCutIVe autHorItY

The executive authority responsible for the entity is the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans.
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report oF tHe audItor-General to parlIaMent  
on tHe Castle Control Board

report on tHe FInanCIal stateMents

IntroduCtIon

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Castle Control Board set out on pages 68 to 105, which 

comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, the statement of financial performance, 

statement of changes in net assets, the cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of budget and 

actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information. 

aCCountInG autHorItY’s responsIBIlItY For tHe FInanCIal stateMents

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practise (SA Standards of 

GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1of 1999) 

(PFMA) and the Castle Management Act of South Africa , 1993 (Act 207 of 1993), and for such internal control 

as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

audItor-General’s responsIBIlItY

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my 

audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the general 

notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply 

with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 

and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 

internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 

of the financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit 

opinion.

opInIon 

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 

Castle Control Board as at 31 March 2014 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then 

ended, in accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP, the requirements of the PFMA and the Castle 

Management Act.

report on otHer leGal and reGulatorY requIreMents

7. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings on 

the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected objectives presented in 

the annual performance report, non-compliance with legislation as well as internal control. The objective of 

my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to 

express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.
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predeterMIned oBJeCtIVes

8. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

information for the following selected objectives presented in the annual performance report of the public 

entity control board for the year ended 31 March 2014:

•	 Programme 2 – Preservation, interpretation and showcasing of the history of the castle on  

pages 25 to 26

•	 Programme 3 – Maximizing the tourism potential of the Castle of Good Hope: on page 27

•	 Programme 4 – Increased public Profile and position perception across all sectors of the community: on 

page 28

9. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

10. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in 

accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance 

was consistent with the planned objectives. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and 

targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the 

National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

11. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate 

and complete.

12. The material findings in respect of the selected programmes are as follows:

useFulness oF reported perForManCe InForMatIon

proGraMMe 2: preserVatIon, InterpretatIon and sHoWCasInG oF tHe HIstorY oF tHe 
Castle 

13. The FMPPI requires the following:

•	 Performance targets must be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level of performance. 

A total of 75% of the targets were not specific.

•	 Performance indicators must be well defined by having clear data definitions so that data can be 

collected consistently and is easy to understand and use. A total of 75% of the indicators were not well 

defined.
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 This was because management did not adhere to the requirements of the FMPPI due to a lack of proper 

systems and processes and technical indicator descriptions.

proGraMMe 4: InCreased puBlIC proFIle and posItIon perCeptIon aCross all 
seCtors oF tHe CoMMunItY

14. The FMPPI requires the following:

•	 Performance targets must be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level of performance. 

A total of 50% of the targets were not specific.

•	 Performance indicators must be well defined by having clear data definitions so that data can be 

collected consistently and is easy to understand and use. A total of 50% of the indicators were not well 

defined.

 This was because management did not adhere to the requirements of the FMPPI due to a lack of proper 

systems and processes and technical indicator descriptions.

15. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information 

for Programme 3: Maximising the tourism potential of the Castle of Good Hope.

addItIonal Matter

16. I draw attention to the following matter:

aCHIeVeMent oF planned tarGets

17. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 24 to 28 for information on the achievement of planned 

targets for the year. This information should be considered in the context of the material findings on the 

usefulness of the reported performance information for the selected programmes reported in paragraphs 13 

and 14 of this report.

CoMplIanCe WItH leGIslatIon

18. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding 

financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance 

with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as 

follows:
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Internal audIt

19. The accounting authority did not ensure that the internal audit function established for the full financial period, 

as required by section 51(1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulations 27.2.2 

and 27.2.3.

proCureMent and ContraCt ManaGeMent

20. Goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 were procured without obtaining the required 

price quotations, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.

21. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that all extension or modification to contracts were 

approved by a properly delegated official as required by Treasury Regulation 8.1 and 8.2.

22. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that quotations were awarded to suppliers whose 

tax matters have been declared by the South African Revenue Services to be in order as required by Treasury 

Regulations 16A9.1(d) and the Preferential Procurement Regulations.

eXpendIture ManaGeMent 

23. The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure, as required by section 

51(1) (b) (ii) of the Public Finance Management Act.

strateGIC plan

24. The strategic plan of public entity did not include the key performance measures and indicators for assessing 

the entity’s performance in delivering the desired outcomes and objectives as required by Treasury Regulation 

30.1.3(d).

Internal Control

25. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report 

and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control 

deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on non-compliance 

with legislation included in this report:
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leadersHIp

26. The accounting authority has not implemented internal policies and procedures for performance information 

management and reporting, to ensure compliance with the applicable laws, regulations and guidelines. 

27. The action plans to address prior year audit findings were not adequately monitored which resulted in the 

reoccurrence of material non-compliance relating to the strategic plan. 

FInanCIal and perForManCe ManaGeMent

28. Management did not have sufficient supervisory and review function in place to govern the procurement of 

expenditure relating to Castle Control Board to ensure that there is no material non-compliance and irregular 

expenditure is timeously identified and that sufficient disclosure of the expenditure is made in the financial 

statements.

GoVernanCe

29. The accounting authority and those charged with governance did not ensure that, for the duration of the year, 

there is an adequately resourced and functioning internal audit unit that identifies internal control deficiencies 

and recommends corrective action effectively. 

Cape Town 

30 July 2014
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2014

Notes 2014 2013

R’000 R’000

ASSETS

Non-current assets 1 552 1 391 

Equipment 6.1 197 165 

Heritage assets 6.2 1 353 1 222 

Intangible assets 6.3 2 4 

Current assets 12 863 12 825 

Inventories 7 64 66 

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 8 102 213 

Cash and cash equivalents 9 12 697 12 546 

Total assets 14 415 14 216 

NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Accumulated Surplus 14 196 14 155 

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 10 173 43 

Provision 11 46 18 

Total net assets and liabilities 14 415 14 216 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Note 2014 2013

R’000 R’000

Revenue from exchange transactions 3 504 3 417 

Ticket sales 2.1 1 943 1 838 

Rental received  690 670 

Other income 2.2 244 324 

Finance income 3 628 585 

Expenditure 3 463 2 534 

Audit fees 309 328 

Cost of maps sold 64 57 

Depreciation and amortisation 64 55 

Staff costs 4 1 775 864 

Other operating expenses 5 1 251 1 230 

   

Surplus for the year 41 883 

Surplus attributable to:

Minority holders – – 

Equity holders of the parent 41 883 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Accumulated

 Funds

TOTAL

R’000 R’000

Balance at 1 April 2012 13 272 13 272

Net surplus for the year 883 883

   

Balance at 1 April 2013 14 155 14 155

Net surplus for the year 41 41

   

Balance at 31 March 2014 14 196 14 196
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Note 2014 2013

R’000 R’000

Cash flows operating activities

Cash receipts from visitors and other income 2 990 2 739 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees (3 242) (2 581)

Cash paid to suppliers (1 494) (1 717)

Cash paid to employees (1 748) (864)

Cash (utilised in)/generated from operations 13 (252) 158 

Finance income received 628 585 

Net cash from operating activities 376 743 

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of equipment 14 (94) (76)

Increase in intangible assets 14 – (5)

Acquisition of museum antiquities 14 (131) (94)

Net cash from investing activities (225) (175)

Total cash movement for the year 151 568 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12 546 11 978 

   

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 12 697 12 546 
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

Approved Difference

Actual Budget Actual vs

2014 2014 Approved

Note R’000 R’000 R’000

Revenue

Exchange revenue 18 3 504 4 160 656 

Sales 2 032   2 000 (32)

Rental 844   1 560 716 

Investment income 628   600 (28)

Expenditure 18 3 463 4 160 697 

Employee costs 1 775   1 775 – 

General expenses 1 688   2 385 697 

Difference 41   – (41)
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notes to tHe annual FInanCIal stateMents 

aCCountInG polICIes

1. BasIs oF preparatIon

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective Standards of Generally 

Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the 

Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 9(1) of the Public Finance Management Act, (Act No 1 of 

1999).

The annual financial statements were prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and incorporate the historical 

cost conventions as the basis of measurement, except where specified otherwise.

In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or 

conditions were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP3 as read with Directive 5.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a 

Standard of GRAP. 

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the 

Castle Control Board. [CCB]

These annual financial statements were prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as 

a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

The principal accounting policies, applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements, are set out below. 

These accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the preparation of the prior year annual financial 

statements, unless specified otherwise.

1.1 sIGnIFICant JudGeMents and estIMates

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 

the amounts represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 

application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 

estimates which may be material to the financial statements. Significant judgements and estimates include:
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notes to tHe annual FInanCIal stateMents 

aCCountInG polICIes

depreCIatIon and aMortIsatIon

Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are determined 

with reference to the useful lives and residual values of the underlying items. The useful lives and residual values of 

assets are based on management’s estimation of the asset’s condition, expected condition at the end of the period 

of use, its current use expected future use and the entity’s expectations about the availability of finance to replace 

the asset at the end of its useful life. In evaluating how the condition and use of the asset informs the useful life and 

residual value management considers the impact of technology and minimum service requirements of the assets.

HerItaGe assets

Heritage assets, which are culturally significant resources and which are shown at cost, are not depreciated due to 

the uncertainty regarding their estimated useful lives. The valuation of heritage assets is dependent on the type of 

the asset and the availability of reliable information. Management makes estimates and assumptions about factors 

such as the restoration cost, replacement cost and cash flow generating ability in estimating fair value.

IMpaIrMents oF non-FInanCIal assets

In testing for, and determining the value-in-use of non-financial assets, management is required to rely on the use 

of estimates about the asset’s ability to continue to generate cash flows (in the case of cash-generating assets). For 

non-cash-generating assets, estimates are made regarding the depreciated replacement cost, restoration cost, or 

service units of the asset, depending on the nature of the impairment and the availability of information.

eFFeCtIVe Interest rate

The entity uses prime interest rate to discount future cash flows.

alloWanCe For douBtFul deBts

On receivables an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is 

impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and the present 

value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.
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notes to tHe annual FInanCIal stateMents 

aCCountInG polICIes

1.2 FInanCIal InstruMents

Financial instruments recognised on the Statement of Financial Position include receivables from exchange 

transactions, cash and cash equivalents and payables from exchange transactions.

1.2.1 InITIAl ReCognITIon

Financial instruments are initially recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value, transaction costs 

that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

1.2.2 SubSequenT MeASuReMenT

Financial Assets are categorised according to their nature as either financial assets at fair value, financial assets 

at amortised cost or financial assets at cost. Financial Liabilities are categorised as either at fair value, financial 

liabilities at cost or financial liabilities carried at amortised cost (”other”). The subsequent measurement of financial 

assets and liabilities depends on this categorisation. 

1.2.2.1 ReCeIvAbleS

Receivables are classified as financial assets at amortised cost, and are subsequently measured amortised at cost 

using the effective interest rate method.

For amounts due from debtors carried at amortised cost, the entity first assesses whether objective evidence of 

impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets 

that are not individually significant. Objective evidence of impairment includes significant financial difficulties of the 

debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in 

payments (more than 90 days overdue). If the entity determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for 

an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets 

with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually 

assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a 

collective assessment of impairment.
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notes to tHe annual FInanCIal stateMents 

aCCountInG polICIes

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured 

as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 

(excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is 

reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of 

Financial Performance. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount based on the 

original effective interest rate of the asset. Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when 

there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the 

CCB. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of 

an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased 

or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is recognised in 

the Statement of Financial Performance. The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the 

financial asset’s original effective interest rate, if material.

1.2.2.2 PAyAbleS 

Financial liabilities consist of payables from exchange transactions. They are categorised as financial liabilities 

held at amortised cost, are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using an 

effective interest rate, which is the initial carrying amount, less repayments, plus interest.

1.2.2.3 CASh AnD CASh equIvAlenTS

Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash) and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly 

liquid investments, readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are held with registered banking institutions 

with maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. For the purposes 

of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and highly liquid deposits. The CCB 

categorises cash and cash equivalents as financial assets carried at fair value.
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notes to tHe annual FInanCIal stateMents 

aCCountInG polICIes

1.2.3 DeReCognITIon of fInAnCIAl InSTRuMenTS

1.2.3.1 fInAnCIAl ASSeTS

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 

derecognised when:

•	 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

•	 the CCB has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 

the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and 

either (a) the CCB has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the CCB has 

neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control 

of the asset.

When the CCB has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 

arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor 

transferred control of the asset, the old asset is derecognised and a new asset is recognised to the extent of the 

Board’s continuing involvement in the asset.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the 

original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the CCB could be required to 

repay. When continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash settled 

option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Board’s continuing involvement is the amount 

of the transferred asset that the CCB may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option (including a 

cash settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Board’s continuing 

involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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1.2.3.2 fInAnCIAl lIAbIlITIeS

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 

the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-

recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying 

amounts is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.2.4 offSeTTIng of fInAnCIAl InSTRuMenTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position 

if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 

settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

1.3 reVenue FroM eXCHanGe transaCtIons 

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the CCB directly in return for services 

rendered/ goods sold, the value of which approximates the consideration received or receivable. At the time of 

initial recognition the full amount of revenue is recognised. If the CCB does not enforce its obligation to collect the 

revenue, this would be considered a subsequent event.

Revenue from the sale of goods shall be recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

•	 The CCB has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

•	 The CCB retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership 

nor effective control over the goods sold.

•	 The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

•	 It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

entity.

•	 The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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At the time of initial recognition the full amount of revenue is recognised where the CCB has an 

enforceable legal obligation to collect, unless the individual collect-ability is considered to be 

improbable. If the CCB does not successfully enforce its obligation to collect the revenue this would 

be considered a subsequent event.

Revenue from the sale of maps and tickets is recognised at the point of sale. The revenue from 

ticket sales received but not yet utilised at year-end is disclosed under Payables from Exchange 

Transactions in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method. Revenue from the rental 

of the CCB managed facilities is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease 

agreement.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when substantially all the risks and rewards in those 

goods are passed to the consumer.

Revenue shall be measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The amount 

of revenue arising on a transaction is usually determined by agreement between the entity and 

the purchaser or user of the asset or service. It is measured at the fair value of the consideration 

received or receivable taking into account the amount of any trade discounts and volume rebates 

allowed by the entity.

In most cases, the consideration is in the form of cash or cash equivalents and the amount of 

revenue is the amount of cash or cash equivalents received or receivable. However, when the 

inflow of cash or cash equivalents is deferred, the fair value of the consideration may be less than 

the nominal amount of cash received or receivable. When the arrangement effectively constitutes 

a financing transaction, the fair value of the consideration is determined by discounting all 

future receipts using an imputed rate of interest. The imputed rate of interest is the more clearly 

determinable of either:

•	 The prevailing rate for a similar instrument of an issuer with a similar credit rating; or

•	 A rate of interest that discounts the nominal amount of the instrument to the current cash 

sales price of the goods or services.
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The difference between the fair value and the nominal amount of the consideration is recognised as interest 

revenue. 

When goods or services are exchanged or swapped for goods or services which are of a similar nature and value, 

the exchange is not regarded as a transaction that generates revenue. When goods are sold or services are 

rendered in exchange for dissimilar goods or services, the exchange is regarded as a transaction that generates 

revenue. The revenue is measured at the fair value of the goods or services received, adjusted by the amount of any 

cash or cash equivalents transferred. When the fair value of the goods or services received cannot be measured 

reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value of the goods or services given up, adjusted by the amount of any 

cash or cash equivalents transferred.

1.4 InVentorIes

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and selling price less costs to complete and sell, on the first-in-first-out 

basis.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing 

the inventories to their present location and condition.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in 

which the related revenue is recognised.

1.5 propertY, plant and equIpMent

1.5.1 fuRnITuRe AnD fITTIngS

1.5.1.1 InITIAl ReCognITIon AnD MeASuReMenT

Items of property, plant and equipment are recognised as assets when it is probable that future economic benefits 

or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost or fair value of the item can be 

measured reliably. Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised as assets on acquisition date and 

are initially recorded at cost where acquired through exchange transactions. However, when items of property, plant 

and equipment are acquired through non-exchange transactions, those items are initially measured at their fair 

values as at the date of acquisition.



CASTLE CONTROL BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014 81

CASTLE CONTROL BOARD  ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

notes to tHe annual FInanCIal stateMents 

aCCountInG polICIes

The cost is the purchase price and other costs directly attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition 

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the CCB. Trade discounts and rebates are 

deducted in arriving at the cost at which the asset is recognised.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 

accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. These major components are 

depreciated separately over their useful lives.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary 

assets or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value 

(the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value is not determinable, its deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) 

given up.

Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when the entity expects to use 

them during more than one period. Similarly, if the major spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in 

connection with an item of property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

1.5.1.2 SubSequenT MeASuReMenT

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses.

1.5.1.3 SubSequenT exPenDITuRe

Where the entity replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset being replaced and capitalises the 

new component.

Subsequent expenditure including major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and 

equipment if the recognition criteria are met.
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1.5.1.4 DePReCIATIon

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives 

of the assets. Components of assets that are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different useful 

lives are depreciated separately. 

The depreciable amount is determined after taking into account an assets’ residual value, where applicable.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each financial year-end and 

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The depreciation charged for each period is recognised in the surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying 

amount of another asset.

The annual depreciation rates are based on the following estimated asset useful lives: 

EQUIPMENT USEFUL LIFE IN RANGES IN YEARS

Furniture and fittings 3 to 6 years

Computers 3 years

1.5.1.5 DeReCognITIon

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further 

economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or 

retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds 

and the carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.5.1.6 CoMPenSATIon fRoM ThIRD PARTIeS

Compensation from third parties for an item of property, plant and equipment that was impaired, lost or given up is 

recognised in surplus or deficit when the compensation becomes receivable.
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1.5.2 heRITAge ASSeTS

1.5.2.1 ReCognITIon

The entity recognises a heritage asset as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential 

associated with the asset will flow to the entity, and the cost or fair value can be measured reliably. If the entity 

holds assets that might be heritage assets but which, on initial recognition, do not meet the recognition criteria of a 

heritage asset because it cannot be measured reliably, such information is disclosed in Note 6.2: Heritage Assets.

1.5.2.2 SubSequenT MeASuReMenT

Subsequent to initial measurement heritage assets are carried at its cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

1.5.2.3 DePReCIATIon

Heritage assets, which are culturally significant resources and which are shown at cost, are not depreciated due to 

the uncertainty regarding their estimated useful lives.

1.5.2.4 DeReCognITIon

Heritage assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service potential are 

expected from their use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from derecognition of a heritage asset is determined as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the heritage asset. Such difference is recognised in surplus or 

deficit when the heritage asset is derecognised.
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1.6 IMpaIrMent oF assets

The CCB tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of 

whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where the carrying amount 

of an item of property, plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable 

service amount), it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and 

an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance. Where items of property, plant and 

equipment have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the impairment loss, which is recognised as an 

expense in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period that the impairment is identified.

An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 

that would have been determined had no impairment been recognised. A reversal of the impairment is recognised 

immediately in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.7 related partIes

A related party is a person or an entity:

•	 with the ability to control or jointly control the other party,

•	 or exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa,

•	 or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control. 

As a minimum, the following are regarded as related parties of the CCB:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the CCB if that person:

•	 has control or joint control over the CCB.

•	 has significant influence over the CCB. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial 

and operating policy decisions of the CCB.

•	 is a member of the management of the CCB or its controlling entity.
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(b) An entity is related to the CCB if any of the following conditions apply:

•	 the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which means that each controlling entity, controlled 

entity and fellow controlled entity is related to the others). 

•	 one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a 

member of an economic entity of which the other entity is a member).

•	 both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

•	 one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

•	 the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the CCB or an entity 

related to the CCB. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are related to 

the entity.

•	 the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

•	 a person identified in (a) has significant influence over that entity or is a member of the management of 

that entity (or its controlling entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be 

influenced by that person in their dealings with the CCB. As a minimum, a person is considered to be a close 

member of the family of another person if they:

(a) are married or live together in a relationship similar to a marriage; or

(b) are separated by no more than two degrees of natural or legal consanguinity or affinity.

Management includes all persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 

activities of the CCB, including:

(a) all members of the governing body of the CCB;

(b) a member of the governing body of an economic entity who has the authority and responsibility for planning, 

directing and controlling the activities of the entity;
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(c) any key advisors of a member, or sub-committees, of the governing body who has the authority and 

responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity; and

(d) the senior management team of the entity, including the chief executive officer or permanent head of the 

entity, unless already included in (a).

Management personnel include:

(a) All directors or members of the governing body of the CCB, being the Board.

(b) Other persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the 

reporting entity being the Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and all other managers reporting directly 

to the Executive Director as designated by the Executive Director.

Remuneration of management includes remuneration derived for services provided to the CCB in their capacity as 

members of the management team or employees. Benefits derived directly or indirectly from the CCB for services 

in any capacity other than as an employee or a member of management do not meet the definition of remuneration. 

Remuneration of management excludes any consideration provided solely as a reimbursement for expenditure 

incurred by those persons for the benefit of the CCB.

1.8 ContInGent lIaBIlItIes

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 

only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 

the entity. A contingent liability could also be a present obligation that arises from past events, but is not recognised 

because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to the 

obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measures with sufficient reliability. Management judgement is 

required when recognising and measuring contingent liabilities.
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1.9 proVIsIons

Provisions are recognised when the CCB has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it 

is probable that an outflow of resource embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle 

the obligation and a reliable estimate of the provision can be made. Provisions are reviewed at reporting date and 

adjusted to reflect the current best estimate of future outflows of resources. Where the effect is material, non-current 

provisions are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects the market’s current assessment 

of the time value of money, adjusted for risks specific to the liability. 

Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision 

where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Gains from the expected disposal of assets are not 

taken into account in measuring a provision. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The present 

obligation under an onerous contract is recognised and measured as a provision. 

The amount recognised as a provision shall be the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 

obligation at the reporting date.

If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be 

required to settle the obligation, the provision shall be de-recognised.

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

1.10 IntanGIBle assets

1.10.1 InITIAl ReCognITIon

An asset meets the identifiability criterion in the definition of an intangible asset when it:

•	 is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the entity and sold, transferred, licensed, 

rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, asset or liability; or

•	 arises from contractual rights (including rights arising from binding arrangements) or other legal rights 

(excluding rights granted by statute), regardless of whether those rights are transferable or separable from the 

entity or from other rights and obligations.
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The CCB recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position only when it is probable that the 

expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the CCB and the 

cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are subject to strict recognition criteria before they are capitalised. Research 

expenditure is never capitalised, while development expenditure is only capitalised to the extent that:

•	 the CCB intends to complete the intangible asset for use or sale;

•	 it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset;

•	 the CCB has the resources to complete the project; and

•	 it is probable that the CCB will receive future economic benefits or service potential.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination 

of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired 

item’s fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

1.10.2 SubSequenT MeASuReMenT – CoST MoDel

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairments 

losses. The cost of an intangible asset is amortised over the useful life where that useful life is finite. Where the 

useful life is indefinite, the asset is not amortised but is subject to an annual impairment test.

1.10.3 AMoRTISATIon AnD IMPAIRMenT

Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of intangible assets over their estimated useful 

lives using the straight line method. Amortisation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in 

the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Components of 

assets that are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are amortised separately. 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect 

of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The annual amortisation rates are based on the following estimated useful lives:

Intangible Assets Years

Computer Software  3
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1.10.4 DeReCognITIon

Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed or when there are no further economic benefits 

or service potential expected from the use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of 

an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is 

recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.11 eMploYee BeneFIts

Short term employee benefits encompasses all those benefits that become payable within a financial year or within 

12 months after the financial year. Therefore, short term employee benefits include remuneration, compensated 

absences and bonuses.

Short term employee benefits are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as services are rendered, 

except for non-accumulating benefits, which are recognised when the specific event occurs. These short term 

employee benefits are measured at their undiscounted costs in the period the employee renders the related service 

or the specific event occurs.

1.12 unautHorIsed eXpendIture

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted for, expenditure that is not in terms of the 

conditions of an allocation received from another sphere of government or organ of state and expenditure in the 

form of a grant that is not permitted. Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the Statement 

of Financial Performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred, and where recovered, it is subsequently 

accounted for as income in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.13 IrreGular eXpendIture

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA)] and the Public 

Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the entity’s supply chain management policies. 

Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in 

the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the 

Statement of Financial Performance.
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Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial period and which was condoned 

before year end/or before finalisation of the annual financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the 

irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no further action is required with the exception of updating the 

note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement 

is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with 

the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following 

financial year, the register and disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount 

condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned 

by the accounting authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If a liability for the 

irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in 

law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not 

possible, the accounting authority/ accounting officer may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose 

such in the relevant note to the financial statements. 

The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been 

condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant 

programme / expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly 

in the expenditure register.

1.14 FruItless eXpendIture

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had 

reasonable care been exercised. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement 

of Financial Performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred, and where recovered, it is subsequently 

accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.
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1.15 reCoVerY oF unautHorIsed, IrreGular, FruItless & WasteFul eXpendIture

The recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is based on legislated procedures, and 

is recognised when the recovery thereof from the responsible officials is probable. The recovery of unauthorised, 

irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is treated as other income.

1.16 BudGet InForMatIon

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by functional classification linked to performance 

outcome objectives.

The approved budget covers the 12 months ending 31 March 2014.

The financial statements and the budget are not prepared on the same basis of accounting. The actual financial 

statement information is therefore presented on a comparable basis to the budget information. The comparison and 

the reconciliation between the statement of financial performance and the budget for the reporting period have been 

included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

1.17 standards approVed But not Yet eFFeCtIVe

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards were approved but not yet 

effective.

GRAP 18 Segment reporting

GRAP 20  Related party disclosure

GRAP 105 Transfers of functions between entities under common control

GRAP 106 Transfers of Functions between entities not under common control

The entity has conducted an assessment on the above standards and has determined that there will be no material 

impact on the entity.
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2014 2013

R’000 R’000

2� Revenue from exchange transactions

2�1 Tickets sales

Gross ticket sales 2 915 2 757

Less: reallocated to Iziko Museums (William Fehr Collection) (972) (919)

Net ticket sales 1 943 1 838 

2�2 Other income

Sale of goods 127 75 

Military Tattoo 116 249 

244 324 

3� Finance income

Interest income – Bank deposits 628 585 

4� Staff costs

Chief Executive Officer 695 89 

Salaries 941 731 

Bonuses 112 44 

1 748 864 
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2014 2013

R’000 R’000

5� Other operating expenses

Advertising 141 71 

Bad debts – 66 

Cleaning 154 123 

Communications 23 19 

Computer services 24 23 

Consulting fees 78 231 

Corporate Functions and Gifts 46 28 

Maintenance – other 62 83 

Maintenance – property 54 40 

Museum expenses 131 161 

Military tattoo 145 44 

CCB special days 144 – 

Other (includes Insurance, Sanitation costs) 181 279 

Training and staff development 16 10 

Transport costs 25 17 

Uniforms and laundry 26 35 

1 251 1 230 
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2014 2013

R’000 R’000

6� Non-current assets

6�1 Equipment

Cost 475 399 

Accumulated depreciation (311) (258)

Opening book value 164 142 

Additions 94 75 

Depreciation (62) (53)

Closing book value 197 165 

No property, plant and equipment is used as security for 

long term liabilities.

6�2 Heritage assets

Cost 1 222 1 128 

Additions 131 94 

Closing book value 1 353 1 222 

No heritage assets are used as security for long term 

liabilities.

6�3 Intangible assets              

  Cost         10   5 

  Accumulated amortisation         (6)   (4)

  Opening book value         4   1 

  Additions         –   5 

  Amortisation         (2)   (2)

  Closing book value         2   4 

                 

  No intangible assets are used as security for long term liabilities.          
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2014 2013

R’000 R’000

7� Inventories              

  Merchandise – Castle Maps          64   66 

                 

No inventory is used as security for long term liabilities.

8� Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions

  Trade receivables         32   149

  Accrued interest         59   58

  Prepaid expenses         10   6 

            102   213 

  Trade receivables analysis              

  0 – 30 days         102   213 

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions are not past due as they are receivable within 30 days.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2014 2013

R’000 R’000

9� Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term, 

highly liquid investments that are held with registered 

banking institutions. All investments with maturities of three 

months or less are subject to insignificant interest risk. The 

carrying amount of these assets approximates to their fair 

value.

Cash at bank 50 122 

Cash on hand 53 120 

Short-term investment instruments 12 595 12 304 

12 697 12 546 

As required by section 7(2) and 7(3) of the Public Finance 

Management Act, National Treasury has approved both 

banks where the bank accounts are held.

10� Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

Trade creditors 49 43 

Bonus provision 112 – 

Deposits 13 – 

173 43 

11� Provisions

Leave Pay 46 18

12� Reserve in accumulated surplus (Military Tattoo)

Opening balance 564 359 

Military Tattoo income for the current year (deficit) (29) 205 

Closing balance 535 564 
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2014 2013

R’000 R’000

13� Reconciliation of surplus to cash generated from/(utilised 

in) operations

Surplus for the year 41 883 

Adjusted for:

– Depreciation 64 55 

– Finance income (628) (585)

– Leave pay 28 – 

Operating cash flows before working capital changes (495) 353 

Working capital changes 244 (195)

– Decrease in inventories 2 17 

– Increase in receivables 111 (110)

– (Decrease)/Increase in payables 130 (102)

Cash generated from/(utilised in) operations (251) 158 

14� Net cash outflow from investing activities

Acquisition of equipment (94) (76)

Increase in intangible assets – (5)

Acquisition of museum antiquities (131) (94)

Cash outflow from investing activities (225) (175)
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2014 2013

R’000 R’000

15� Related parties Nature of relationship

Iziko Museums of South Africa Share of income from gate takings 

and related business in terms of 

agreement

Accrued revenue

972 

 

–

 919 

 

38

South African National Defence 

Force *

Management and administrative 

support to the Castle Control Board 

(CCB).

Payment for the use of fixed line 

communications equipment

2 607 

 

11 

2 416 

 

9 

Army Support Base Western Cape Transactions from the rental of CCB 

managed facilities and equipment.

164 263 

South African Heritage Resources 

Agency

Office rentals 102 96 

Castle Control Board Executive and Non-executive 

members (Refer to Note 16)

814 101

* The management and administrative support costs of the SANDF as shown above are not included in the expenses of the Castle Control Board.
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16� Remuneration of Executive Director, Board and Audit Committee Members

Board members are not remunerated for their services.

A honorarium is paid to advocate Dave Mitchell as the Audit Committee Chairman.

The following emoluments were paid to directors during the year under review

Executive Director – CT Gilfellan (Mr� P�L� Madden – Interim CEO for three months in 2012/13)

2014 2013

R’000 R’000

Salary 695 89 

Bonus 112 – 

Total 807 89

Audit Committee – Honorarium

Adv. D. Mitchell (Chairman) 7 12 

Ms. F. Allie ** – – 

Mr. D. Rossouw ** – –

Total Directors’ remuneration 814 101

** Not remunerated for attending Audit Committee meetings as they are employed by the government.
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17� Financial Risk Management

Financial Risk Management

Financial instruments are used to cover risks linked to the entity’s activities. Each instrument is tied to an asset or 

liability as an operational or financing transaction.

17�1 Financial risk factors

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Castle Control Board if a customer or counterparty to a financial 

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Castle Control Board’s receivables 

from customers. 

All investments are placed with approved banking institutions. 

An allowance for impairment is established based on management’s estimate of identified incurred losses in respect 

of specific trade and other receivables. Bad debts are written of if and when they are incurred.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Castle Control Board will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 

The Castle Control Board’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due.

The liquidity risk is considered as low, because the Castle Control Board has adequate funds at their disposal.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Castle Control Board’s exposure to changes in interest rates is limited as the funds are invested with National 

Treasury approved banking institutions.

(d) Capital management

The policy of the management is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain public sector confidence and to 

sustain future developments of the Castle Control Board. There were no changes in the management’s approach to 

capital management of the Castle Control Board during the year.
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(e) Analysis of financial assets and liabilities

Floating 

interest 

rate

Non-

interest 

bearing

Total

31 March 2014 R’000 R’000 R’000

Assets

Trade receivables – 92 92 

Cash and cash equivalents 12 697 – 12 697 

Total assets 12 697 92 12 789 

Liabilities

Trade payables – 219 219 

Total liabilities – 219 219 

Net financial assets/(liabilities) 12 697 (127) 12 571

Floating

interest

rate

Non-

interest 

bearing

Total 

31 March 2013 R’000 R’000 R’000

Assets

Trade receivables – 213 213 

Cash and cash equivalents 12 546 – 12 546 

Total assets 12 546 213 12 759 

Liabilities

Trade payables – 61 61 

Total liabilities – 61 61 

Net financial assets/(liabilities) 12 546 152 12 698
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2014 2013

R’000 R’000

17�2 Interest risk sensitivity analysis

Cash and cash equivalents 12 697 12 546 

1% interest rate fluctuation impact 126�97 125.46 

Currency risk

The Castle Control Board does not enter into foreign currency-based transactions nor into any forward exchange 

contracts and therefore has no currency risk.

Liquidity risk

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities at the reporting date were:

Trade and other payables 219 61

The contractual maturities for all borrowings and payables outstanding at both 31 March 2014 and 2013 were 

12 months or less.

17�3 Fair value estimation

The face value of cash, trade receivables and trade payables less any estimated credit adjustments are the 

approximate fair values on 31 March 2014 and 2013, as a result of the short-term maturity of these assets and 

liabilities.
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18� Reconciliation of the budget to actual financial performance

The financial statements and the budget are not prepared on the same basis of accounting. The actual financial 

statement information is therefore presented on a comparable basis to the budget information. The comparison 

and the reconciliation between the statement of financial performance and the budget for the reporting period are 

explained:

Income

Revenue increased as a result of increases in actual ticket sales as well as income from investments. Although there 

is a slight increase in revenue it is still below the estimate for the year due to below par performance and a waiver of 

rentals for De Goewerneur Restaurant.

Expenditure

When the budget was compiled a significant amount was allocated for repairs and maintenance of the site. It has 

since transpired that the DPW and DOD have undertaken to carry the costs of major overhaul of the Castle thus 

resulting in underspending of the expenditure budget.
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19� Irregular expenditure

All expenditure is incurred in accordance with a Board-approved Procurement Policy and is reported to and 

confirmed by the Board. Expenditure incurred in contravention of Treasury Regulation 16A is classified as irregular, 

even though Board-approved.

2014 2013

R’000 R’000

Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Opening balance 1 709 1 185 

Instances incurred in the current year 354 524 

Less: Amounts condoned (1 970) – 

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation 93 1 709 

Incidents
Amount

R’000
Explanation

Non-compliance with Preferential 

Procurement Policy Framework Act 

(PPPFA) prescripts

165 Existing contracts in place that were not entered into in 

terms of PPPFA.

Contravention of Public Finance 

Management Act (PFMA) prescripts 

and Treasury Regulations (TRs)

96 

93

Insufficient quotes obtained as per Treasury Regulations

Winning suppliers did not sign the SDB4 forms declaring 

no conflict of interest as per Treasury Regulations

On 25 July 2014, the Board reviewed and condoned all irregular expenditure as tabled. The remaining R93 000 will 

be presented to the Board for condonation at its next meeting.

Nature of spend

Advertising 3 50

Accounting Services 44 111

Cleaning and hygiene services 165 139

Computer expenses 12 5

Consulting fees 10 118

General expenditure 30 7

Museum expenses 47 56 

Printing 23 35 

Security services 20 3 

354 524
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20� Contingent liabilities

The Castle Control Board has applied for approval from National Treasury to retain the surplus of R41 000 disclosed 

in the statement of financial performance, as required by section 53(3) of the Public Finance Management Act, 

1999. Approval was granted in the prior year to retain the accumulated surplus. The Board has however complied 

with the Castle Management Act under which the Board was constituted which act allows and requires the Board to 

retain all surpluses arising from its operations, for these funds to be utilised by the Board in fulfilling its obligations 

and statutory mandate. The surplus emanating from current year operations has thus been disclosed as a 

contingent liability.

21� Taxation

The receipts and accruals of the CCB are exempt from income tax in terms of section 10(1)(cA)(i) of the Income Tax 

Act. Consequently no tax has been provided in these accounts.

22� Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

In accordance with Section 55(2)(b)(i) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, the Board is satisfied to report 

that no fruitless and wasteful expenditure was incurred during this year nor in the previous year.

23� Unauthorised expenditure

The Board is satisfied that no unauthorised expenditure incurred during the current year nor in the previous year.


